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We remain steadfast in our
commitment to delivering
sustainable growth, operational
excellence and long-term

value for our stakeholders.

Our priority remains to ensure
that the company is positioned
amongst the regional market
leaders by leveraging on our
Innovative capabilities and
differentiated offering.

Khalaf Ahmad Al Habtoor

Chairman of the Board

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
present our 33rd Financial Results together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31st December 2024.

| am delighted to announce that DNI has reported
excellent profitability for the year 2024 achieving
a net profit of AED 53.5 million. This is a result of
the sound and prudent underwriting strategy as
well as the strong investment income. The company
performed commendably in a year when the
country has seen unprecedented challenges due to
the heavy rains.

The April 2024 floods in UAE were a stark reminder
of the increasing climate-related risks and the
crucial role of the insurance industry in providing
economic stability. In response, DNI took swift
action to support policy holders, expediting claim
settlements and enhancing customer assistance to
provide asmooth and transparent claims settlement
service.

DNI's Board of Directors, as well as the
management team, remain committed to providing
comprehensive, innovative and reliable insurance
solutions that protect individuals, businesses
and communities from unforeseen risks. We
remain steadfast in our commitment to delivering
sustainable growth, operational excellence and
long-term value for our stakeholders. Our priority
remains to ensure that the company is positioned
amongst the regional market leaders by leveraging
on our innovative capabilities and differentiated
offering.

DNI continues to build on its strong relationships
with customers and partners, a diversified business
mix, operational excellence, and disciplined financial
management to ensure that we continue to deliver
excellent technical results, thereby generating a
consistent return to our esteemed shareholders.

Key Financial Highlights

Insurance Revenue

DNI Insurance Revenue increased to AED 469.1
million during 2024, compared to AED 448.3 million
for the year 2023.

Cash and Bank Balances

DNI cash and bank balances increased to AED 246.3
million as at 31st December 2024, compared to AED
200.6 million as at 31st December 2023.

Investments

Total investments including cash and bank balances,
Investments in Equity and Debt instruments and
investment properties increased to AED 932.6
million as at 31st December 2024, compared to AED
838.4 million as at 31st December 2023.

Total Assets

Total assets increased to AED 1,656.6 million as at
31st December 2024, compared to AED 977.8 million
as at 31st December 2023.

Shareholders® Equity

The Shareholders' Equity position increased to AED
803.2 million as at 31st December 2024, compared
to AED 722.6 million as at 31st December 2023.

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share increased to
AED 0.46 as a result of achieving a net profit of AED
53.5 million for the year 2024 compared to basic
and diluted earnings per share of AED 0.41 resulting
from a net profit of AED 47.1 million last year. The
Board is pleased to recommend to the shareholders
a15% cash dividend amounting to AED 17.325 million.

We acknowledge the gratitude, support, and
guidance received from our UAE’s leadership. We
take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders,
clients, business partners, reinsurers, employees
and regulators for their trust and confidence in the
company.

We head into 2025 with renewed optimism and a
focus on continuity and progress. As UAE's economy
evolves, DNI remains committed to building a
resilient, future-ready insurance business that
delivers sustainable returns and makes a meaningful
impact. | am fully confident in our ability to continue
building on our expertise to deliver value for the
community and our stakeholders over the coming
years by supporting the country’s long-term growth.

) A
Kfialal¥mad Al Habtoor
Chair: I' the Board
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Message from CEO

We will persist in
optimizing our business
and introducing innovative
products and services

to meet our customers’
evolving needs

A R Srinivasan
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Stakeholders,

| am pleased to present DNI's financial
results for the year ended 31st December
2024.

DNI  experienced another successful vyear,
characterized by significant underwriting growth
across key business lines and strong investment
income, culminating in a net profit of AED 53.5
million. Despite the unprecedented challenges
faced by UAE insurance sector due to the heavy
rains, this performance underscores the Company's
steadfast commitment to a sound and prudent
underwriting strategy. The UAE devasting floods of
April 2024 were a pivotal moment for the insurance
industry, underscoring the critical role we play in
safeguarding businesses and individuals. At DNI
we took swift action to support our customers by
accelerating claims settlements, enhancing digital
capabilities and by improving our customer service.

We remain dedicated to implementing our
automation and digitalization plans to ensure fast
and efficient customer service. Additionally, we will
continue to take necessary measures to maximize
shareholder value and contribute to societal and
community betterment.

We will persist in optimizing our business and
introducing innovative products and services to
meet our customers' evolving needs

Key Financial Highlights

Insurance Revenue
DNI's insurance revenue increased to AED 469.1
million in 2024, up from AED 448.3 million in 2023.

Insurance Service Result
DNI's insurance service result was AED (2.3) million
in 2024, compared to AED 15.7 million in 2023.

Net Investment Income
DNI's net investment income rose to AED 63.2 million
in 2024, from AED 37.6 million in 2023.

Net Profit
DNI's net profit increased to AED 53.5 million in
2024, compared to AED 47.1 million in 2023.

These positive results reflect the superior
underwriting capabilities of the company and the
success of our transformation strategy. We continue
to ensure that we deliver excellent results, thereby
generating consistent returns for our esteemed
shareholders.

Appreciation

| extend my sincere thanks to our Chairman, Board
of Directors, and shareholders for their continued
support and guidance, our clients and business
partners for their trust in our company, and our
management team and employees for their diligent
efforts.

—

A.R. Srinixvasan ——
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (PS.C.)
{the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Infernational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) ("IESBA Code"), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UAE, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our andit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as 2 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Integrated Report 2024 |
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audht Marrer

Valuation of remsurance contract assets and insurance contrace liabilities
Our audit procedures in conjuncton with our
actuarial specialists:

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reinsurance
contract assets and insurance contract liabilities ate valued
AED 662 million and AED 815 million respectively.
(tefer Note 7).

Valuation of reinsurance contract assets and insurance
contract liabilities involves significant judgements and
estimates particularly with respect to, eligibility of the
premium allocation approach (PAA) and estimation of the
liabilities for incurred claims.

These liabilities primatily include determination of
expected premium receipts, expected ultimate cost of
claims and allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
which are within the contract boundaries.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarial experts in order
to ensure appropriateness of methodology, assumptions
and data used to determine the estimated future cash
flows and the appropriateness of the discount rates used
to determine the present value of these cashflows.

As a result of all the above factors, we consider valuation
of reinsurance contract assets and insurance contract
liabilities as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audic matter

Understood and evaluated the process, the design of
controls in place to determine valuation of
teinsurance contract assets and insurance contract

liabilities;

Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management appointed actuary;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of data used to
determine future cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology, significant  assumptions
including rsk adjustment, PAA eligibility
assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows. This
included consideration of the reasonableness of
assumptions against actual historical experience
and the appropriateness of any judgments
applied;

We independently reperformed the calculation
to assess the mathematical accuracy of the
reinsurance contract assets and insurance
contract liabilities on selected classes of
business, particularly focusing on largest and
most uncertain reserves;

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
allowance for expected credit loss including the
data, key assumptions and judgments used; and

Assessed the adequacy of disclosutes included
in financial statements against the requirements
of IFRS.

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Other Information

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ Statement and Chief Execntive Oficer’s
Statement, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to tead the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the wotk we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and their
preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the articles of association of the Company, UAE
Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, Federal Decree Law No. (48) of 2023 regarding the regulation of
Insurance activities and, Central Bank of the UAE Board of Directors’ Decision No. (25) of 2014 pertinent
to the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and ate considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ertot, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Integrated Report 2024 | 13
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 2 going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicadon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that:
i) We have obtained all the information we considered necessaty for the purposes of our audit;

ii)  The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Dectee Law No. (32) of 2021;

ii)  The Company has maintained proper books of account in accordance with established accounting
ptinciples;

iv)  The financial information included in the Board of Directors’ Statement and Chief Exeeutive Officer’s
Statement is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

v)  Note 6 to the financial statements discloses shates purchased during the financial year ended
31 December 2024;

vi)  Note 10 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions, and the terms under
which they were conducted;

vii) The Company has not made any social contribution during the financial year ended 31 December 2024;

@ GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report

Dubai National Insurance

To the Shareholders of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

viii) Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2024
any of the applicable provisions of the Federal Dectree Law No. (32) of 2021, or of its Memorandum of
Association which would materially affect its activities ot its financial position as at 31 December 2024;

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (48) of 2023, we report that we have obtained all the

information and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Furthermore, as required by the CBUAE Insurance Reporting Requirements, note 6 and note 10 to the financial
statements discloses information on assets that are held by 2 related party for the beneficial interest of the

Company.

GRANT THORNTON UAE

(/ (5. P.0. Box: 1620%
@AN?} jmfﬁ 9 DUBAI-UAE.E‘?

6’56 R
Dr. Osama El Bakry feco
Registration No: 935
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
20 March 2025
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Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) FURERE N . O e D e e, FEOY
Statement of financial position ;tat:;nent of p r:l)ﬁ; (3); l;;ss ber 2024
As at 31 December 2024 Litiial i i
2024 2023
2024 2023 : .
Notes AED’000 AED!UOO Notes AED000 AED 000
Assets
Property and equip:jnent 4 5,458 4,739 Insurance revenue 469,122 448,353
Investment properties 3 175,605 158,480 Insurance service expenses 16 (1,249,604) (363,847)
Financial assets 6 510,702 479,366 z )
1 T — 7 662,211 91,306 Insurapce service result befoFe reinsurance contracts held (780,482) 84,506
Statutory deposit 8 10,000 10,000 Allocation of reinsurance premiums (204,001) (226,310)
Other receivables 0 46,348 33,300 Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 982,196 157,571
S A - A 200,614 Net income /(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held 778,195 (68,739)
Total assets 1,656,646 977,805 '
Equity and liabilities Insurance service result (2,287) 15,767
Equity
ghﬂe capital 12 115,500 115,500 Income from investments 18 37,562 26,254
tatutory reserve 13 57,750 57,750 . . 678
Eae 13 180,000 180,000 Incoz.ne from mvt?stment properties 19 25,67 11,358
RN —— 13 5,678 4413 Net investment income 63,240 37,612
Fair value resetve on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 206,642 168,145 Insurance finance expense for insurance contracts issued 17 (340) (484)
Retained carnings 237,576 196,847 Reinsurance finance income/(expense) for reinsurance
Total equity 803,146 722,655 contracts held 17 4,647 (3,177
Liabilities Net insurance finance income/(expense) 4,307 (3,661)
Employees’ end-of-service benefits 14 4,740 4,726
Insurance contract liabilities 7 814,950 222243 Net insurance and investment result 65,260 49718
Other payables 15 27,186 28,181
Income tax payable 24 1,354 - ; .
Deferred tax liability 24 5,270 - ERugeipaGae N
Total liabilities 853,500 255,150 Other operating expenses o (8,338) (2,658)
Total equity and liabilities 1,656,646 977,805 Profit for the year before tax 56,422 47,120
24 878 .
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 Match 2025 and signed on their HIECHE HE'ExpRose (2,575)
behalf by_ Profit for the year after tax 53,544 47,120
\ Basic and diluted earnings per share after tax 21 0.46 0.41
Mr. Khal d Al Habtoor . Molhammed Khalaf Al Habtoor
Ch: / émber
(L

The notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Profit for the year after tax

1vVe Income:

tax

Debt investment at FVTOCI — reclassified to profit or loss on

Net unrealised gain on debt investments carried at FVIOCI — net of

Tterns that are or will be reclassified sibsequently to profit or loss:

Other comprehens

maturity
Net unrealised gain on equity investments carried at FVTOCI — net of

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

tax
FOR THE YEAR

Loss on sale of financial assets designated at FVT'OCI

Total other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

19
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Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2024

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1 Legal status and activities
2024 2023 Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.) (the “Company”) is a public shareholding Company
Notes AED’000 AED’000 incorporated in Dubai on 6 January 1992.
Cash flows from operating activities ; i : P— :
Profit for the year before tax 56,422 47120 The .C_ompa.ny is eng?gcd in insurance a.nc:l‘ rei.ns:.lmnce of all classes of business in accorda'ncc \\_rlr.h tl_le
i ¥ provisions of the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, concerning Financial
Adjustments for: Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates and regulation
Depreciation on property and equipment 4 1,205 671 of its operations.
Capxt.aF PR progress,wntte.n aff . 4 149 - The registered address of the Company is Dubai National Insurance Building, 3 Floor, Sheikh Zayed Road,
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 14 1,030 870 P.O. Box 1806, Dubai. UAE.
Gain on disposal of property and equipment - (48) 4 : . _ . .
Gain from change in fair value of investment properties 5 (16,931) (5,441) On 9 December 2022, the United Arab Ermrate.s (UAE) _Mlmstry of If‘mance (“MoF”) released Fed:eral
Income from investment properties (8,747) (5,917) Decree-Law No 47 of 2022 on th'c Taxation of Corporations al_'ld Businesses, Corpor.'.ate Tax Law (¢ CT
Dividend and interest income (37,562) (26,254) Law’?i ti g CTE:cg;;nJe " tghgzg ?.;hznew CT, G i h;; b ;ffecu;f lf;r accgunutr;lg
. ) ; : periods beginning on or after 1 June . As the Company’s accounting year ends on ecembet, the
Opeeating cash flows before changes in wotking capital (4/434) T first tax period will be the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, with the respective tax return
; ; ; to be filed on or before 30 September 2025.
Changes in working capital
Other receivables (13,048) (14,373) The taxable income of the entities that are in scope for UAE CT purposes will be subject to the rate of 9%
Reinsurance contract assets (570,905) 13,059 RI;E’ It)m;a];l;ﬂpiimﬁts above AED 375,000. The tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
Insurance contract liabilities 592,707 (23,198) . on.
Other payables 359 (5,967) 2 Statement of compliance with IFRS
Cash ted fi d i ti tiviti ” -
o< ne'ra s rom/‘(use ko) ops Sy TR iy Rt These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Employees' end-of-services benefits paid 14 (1,016) (443) : . . :
Nisieuhgenesired e (used tiny opssaity Standards (IFRS) promulgated by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and interpretations
S 4 P g thereof issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee and in compliance with
activities 3,663 (19,921) the applicable requirements of U.AE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, relating to commercial
. . L companies, and of UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, concerning Financial Regulations of Insurance
Cash flows from investing activiaes Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates and regulation of its operations. These
Purchase of property and equipment (2,073) (3,292) financial statements are prepared in UAE Dirhams (“AED”) being the economic, functional and reporting
Capital expenditure on investment properties (194) 914) currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.
Purchase of investment in equity securities 6 (191) - —— ti
Purchase of investment in debt securities - (12,424) L.
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 60 This financial statement has been prepatred on the historical cost basis, except for financial assets carried at
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 11,018 13,405 fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Net movement in fixed deposits 109,752 (4,157) and investment propeties which are cartied at fair value and the provision for employees’ end of service
Income received from investments — net 36,288 26,654 benefits which is calculated in line with UAE labour laws.
Income received from investment properties 8,747 5917 The Company’ statement of financial position is not presented using a custent/ non-curtent classification.
Net cash generated from investing activities 163,347 25,249 However, the following balances would generally be classified as current: cash and cash equivalents,

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, other receivables, other payables and income tax payable.
Cash flows from financing activity The following balances would generally be classified as non-current: property and equipment, investment
Dividend paid 22 (11,550) (11,550) properties and statutory deposits and employees’ end of service benefits. The following balances are of
Net cash used in financing activity (11,550) (11,550) mixed nature (including both current and non-current portions): financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income, reinsurance contract assets, insurance contract assets and liabilities, fixed deposits,
bank balances and defetred tax liability.

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 155,460 (6,222)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 61,037 67,259
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11 216,497 61,037

The notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2 Statement of compliance with IFRS (continued)
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
New and revised IFRS and interpretations applied on the financial statements

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date
Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants
1 Januvary 2024

Lasd and classification of liabilities as cutrent or non-current
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7

IAS7and IFRS7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures—Supplier Finance 1 January 2024
Arrangements

IFRS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 — Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

These standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements,

Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends
to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard number Title Effective date

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability Sale or Contribution
S of Assets between an Investor and its x‘%sesociattyc or Joint Venture S
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial
IFRS9 & IFRS7  Instruments: Disclosures regarding the classification and 1 January 2026
measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027

3 Material accounting policy information
Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts, reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features. It
introduces a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present
value of future cash flows that are expected to arise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit risk
adjustment for non-financial risk and a contractual service margin.

Under IFRS 17, insurance revenue in each reporting period represents the changes in the liabilities for
remaining coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration and an
allocation of contributions that relate to tecoveting insurance acquisition cash flows, In addition, investment
components are no longer included in insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Company issues insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant
insurance risk from its policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has
significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occut. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts acéounting treatment
Level of aggregation

IFRS 17 requires a company to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requitements. The
Company previously applied aggregation levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher than the level
of aggregation required by IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Company is determined firstly by
dividing the business written into portfolios. Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar risks
which are managed together. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into
three categories: onerous contracts, contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the
remainder. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Company identifies a contract as
the smallest ‘unit’, i.e., the lowest common denominator. However, the Company makes an evaluation of
whether a series of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and supportable
information, or whether a single contract contains components that need to be separated and treated as if
they were stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for accounting purposes may differ
from what is considered as a contract for other purposes (i.e., legal or management). IFRS 17 also notes
that no group for level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts issued more than one year apart.

The Company has elected to group together those contracts that would fall into different groups only
because law, regulation or internal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different price
or level of benefits for policyholders with different characteristics. The Company applied a full retrospective
approach for transition to IFRS 17. The portfolios are further divided into groups of contracts by year of
issue and profitability for recognition and measurement putposes. Hence, within each year of issue,
portfolios of contracts ate divided into three groups, as follows:

* A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)

* A group of contracts that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onetous
subsequently (if any)

* A group of the remaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by actuarial valuation models that take into consideration
existing and new business. The Company assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise, For contracts that ate not onerous, the
Company assesses, at initial recognition, that there is no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and citcumstances.

The Company considers facts and circumstances to identify whether a group of contracts are onerous based
on:

*  Evaluation of expected combines ratios;

*  Pricing information;

*  Results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

*  Environment factors, e.g., a change in market experience or regulations.

‘The Company divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out above,
except that the references to onerous contracts refer to contracts on which there is a net gain on initial
recognition. For some groups of reinsurance contracts held, a group can comprise a single contract.
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)

Level of aggregation (continued)

Recognition

The Company recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

*  The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the fitst payment is
received if there is no due date; and

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous.

The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held:

*  If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the
coverage period of the group, or the initial recognition of any underlying contract; and

*  In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage period of the group The Company adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows
within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance
contract if they atise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which
the Company can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive
obligation to provide the policyholder with services. A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result,
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of
that portfolio; and

*  The pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take
into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset telating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
is not recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.

Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach
Insurance contracts — initial measurement

The Company applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues
and reinsurance contracts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including coverage arising from
all premiums within the contract boundary.

Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenarios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general model. In assessing materiality, the Company has also considered
qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach (continued)

Insurance contracts — initial measurement (continued)

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant
variability in the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining
coverage during the period before a claim is incurred. Variability in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

*  The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts.
*  The length of the coverage period of the group of contracts. '

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for
remaining coverage as the premiums, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,
plus or minus any amount arising from the derecognition at that date of the asset or liability recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows that the Company pays or receives before the group of insurance contracts
is recognised. There is no allowance for time value of money as the premiums are mostly received within
one year of the coverage petod.

The Company measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same
basis as insurance contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the features of reinsurance contracts
held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or reduction in
expenses rather than revenue.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The Company measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting period as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the period:

*  Plus premiums received in the period;

*  Minus capitalised insurance acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense
in the reporting period for the group; and

*  Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the coverage period.

The Company estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable
information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future
cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company does not adjust the future cash flows
for the time value of money and the effect of financial tisk for the measurement of liability for incurred
claims that are expected to be paid within one year of being incurred.

Insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated on a deferment pattern basis over the petiod of time.
Reinsurance contracts

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition

The Company derecognises insurance contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e. discharged, cancelled or
expired);

or

*  The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model or
the applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundary, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Company derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as 2 new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Company recognises amounts paid or teceived
for the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Company has presented separately, in the statement of financial position, the catrying amount of groups
of insurance contracts issued that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
reinsurance contracts held that are assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

Any assets or liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance
contracts are included in the carrying amount of the related groups of insurance contracts issued.

The Company does not disaggregate the total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income into an insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance
setvice expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Company does not disaggregate the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial
and non-financial portion which will be presented in insurance finance income ot expenses and in insurance
service result respectively.

The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held from the expenses
ot income from insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the period is the amount of expected premium receipts (excluding any investment
component) allocated to the period. The Company allocates the expected premium receipts to each period
of coverage on the basis of the passage of time; but if the expected pattern of release of risk duting the
coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then on the basis of the expected timing of
incurred insurance service expenses.

The Company changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts and
circumstances change. The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

For the periods presented, all revenue has been recognised on the basis of the passage of time.

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Loss components

The Company assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances
indicate otherwise. If at any time during the coverage period, the facts and circumstances indicate that a
group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Company establishes a loss component as the excess of the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the carrying amount of the
liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage period of the group
of contracts the loss component will be zero.

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the cartying amount of the group of insurance
contracts arising from:

*  The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
*  The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company does not disaggregate insurance finance income or expenses between profit or loss and OCI.
The impact of changes in market interest rates on the value of the insurance assets and liabilities are reflected
in profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets are also measured at FVTOCIL

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be tecovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the teinsurance
premiums paid. The Company treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the undetlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and
excludes investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and /or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Cost includes the cost of replacing part
of an existing investment properties at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and
excludes the cost of day-to-day servicing of investment propetties.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in the profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properties are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

The Company determines fair value on the basis of valuation performed by two independent external
valuers who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent expetience in the
location and category of the investment properties being valued. The Company takes average of the value
from two different valuers as a fair value in its financial statements.

Financial instruments
a) Recognition, initial measutrement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset i.e. the trade date.
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3 Material accounting policy information {(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished.

b) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets for which:

- the Company’s business model is to hold them in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Financial assets at amortised cost comprise statutory deposits, cash and bank balances, amounts due from
related parties and other receivables.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCP’)
Investments in equity and debt securities are classified as FVTOCI. At initial recognition, the Company
can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity

and debt investments at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held
for trading.

Fair value measurement

For investments traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. Investments in
unquoted securities are measured at fair value, considering observable market inputs and unobservable
financial data of investees.

Gains or losses on subsequent measurement

Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of investments at FVTOCI is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reported within the fair value reserve for investments at FVTOCI within equity.
When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is not
reclassified from the equity reserve to statement of profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

<) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise amounts due to related parties and most other payables.
Financial liabilities are measuted subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

d) Measurement of ECL

Under the simplified approach of IFRS 9, the Company has measured the expected credit losses on financial
assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are possible within

the 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment of Credit Risk:

In determining the expected credit losses, the Company has assessed the credit risk of financial assets based
on reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
has included historical credit loss experience, current observable data, and forward-looking information.
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Recognition of Expected Credit Losses

Expected credit losses have been recognized on financial assets from initial recognition, with an adjustment
for changes in credit risk since the asset was initially recognized. The Company has recognized the expected
credit losses as an allowance account against the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Reversal of Expected Credit Losses

If, in a subsequent reporting petiod, the credit risk on a financial asset improves and the amount of expected
credit losses decreases, the Company will reverse the previously recognized expected credit losses through
profit or loss.

e) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and Liabilities ate offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are proposed by the Board of Directors.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered
such as paid vacation leave and bonuses) is recognised in the year in which the service is rendered.

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

A provision for employees' end of setvice benefits is made for the full amount due to employees for their
years of service up to the reporting date in accordance with the UAE Labour Law and is reported as separate
line item under non-current liabilities.

The entitlement to end of service benefits is based upon the employees’ salary and length of service, subject
to the completion of 2 minimum setvice year as specified in the UAE Labour Law. The expected costs of
these benefits are accrued over the year of employment.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of
financial position date are translated to AED at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using
the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date or whenever there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. An impairment charge is reversed
if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its’ carrying amount.
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Short term operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits, current accounts and fixed deposits which
have original maturities of less than 3 months and are free from lien.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of economic resources from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or
amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to
the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related
provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resoutces as a result of present obligations is

considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised, unless it was assumed in the course of a business
combination.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an
asset are considered contingent assets.

Taxation
Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the period determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the period.

Income tax expense is recognised in interim period based on the best estimate of the weighted average
annual income tax rate expected for the full financial year. Amounts accrued for income tax expense in
interim petiod may have to be adjusted in a subsequent interim period of that financial year if the estimate
of the annual income tax rate changes.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for in respect of all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described above in these financial
statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the cartying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future year if the
revision affects both cutrent and future years. The following ate the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting yeat, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracts. When measuring
liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Company’s previous accounting
treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now
discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are
incurred and includes 2n explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Company is eligible and chooses to capitalise all insurance
acquisition cashflows upon payments.

The effect of recognising insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of
insurance contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss on
initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over the
coverage year. For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is determined
by the fulfilment cash flows.

Liability for incurred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption undetlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development expetience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling
costs), and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually sepatately
addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in
order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future
rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical
claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes
in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims
inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features
and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the
probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all
the uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Integrated Report 2024 | 31



DNI

Dubai National Insurance

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Discount rates

The Company use bottom-up approach to derive the discount rate. Under this approach, the discount rate
is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity characteristics between the financial
assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as an ‘lliquidity
premium’). The risk-free rate was derived using EIOPA rates with volatility adjustment along with the
country risk premium (inclusive of the liquidity premiam).

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:

1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years 20 years
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Insurance contracts issued
AED 515% 5.95% 5.04% 492% 4.99% 4.69% 5.04% 4.64% 5.08% 4.66%

Reinsurance contracts held
AED 5.15% 595%  5.04% 4.92% 4.99%  4.69%  5.04% 4.64% 5.08% 4.66%

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The Company use Mack method to determine its risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The bootstrap
effectively allows the Company to measure the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows
that arise from non-financial risk since bootstrapping the triangles aims to illustrate the variability of the
paid claims.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 70th percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all
product lines (as an indication of the compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being
equivalent to the 70th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of
the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and
the additional amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target
percentiles.

Valuation of investment properties

Fair value of investment properties is estimated by two independent professional valuers accredited with
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors for disclosure purposes only, considering the rental yield
(income approach). This estimate was made considering market rent and average rental yield. Fair value was
dependent on market factors and availability of information.

Rights and obligations of the investments

One quoted equity investment is in the name of the Chairman, however, is controlled by the Company.
This investment is held for the beneficial interest of the Company. Management addresses the significant
judgement over the rights and obligations by obtaining direct annual re-confirmation from the Chairman
that the assets held in Chairman’s name are for the Company’s beneficial interest and receiving all risk and
economic rewards associated with this investment.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

a

2024

Cost

At 1 January
Additions
Transfers

Write off

At 31 December

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 January

Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December 2024

2023

Cost

At 1 January
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 31 December

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 January

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

Property and equipment

Furniture Capital

and Motor Computer work in
fixtures vehicles  equipment progress Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
1,201 452 6,509 1,855 10,017
5 = - 2,073 2,073
31 - 1,861 (1,892) -
. = e (149) 5
1,232 452 8,370 1,887 11,941
489 425 4,364 - 5,278
210 27 968 - 1,205
699 452 5,332 - 6,483
533 - 3,038 1,887 5,458
1,522 502 4777 1,172 7,973
17 - 1,807 1,468 3,292
785 - - (785) -
(1,123) (0) (75) = (1,248)
1,201 452 6,509 1,855 10,017
489 425 4,364
1,463 435 3,943 - 5,841
135 40 496 - 671
(1,109) (50) (75) = (1,2349)
489 425 4,364 - 5,278
712 27 2,145 1,855 4,739

Integrated Report 2024 | 33



DNI

Dubai National Insurance

34

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5 Investment properties
Investment  Capital work
properties in progress Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2024
At 1 January 158,480 - 158,480
Additions 194 - 194
Increase in fair value during the year 16,931 - 16,931
At 31 December 2024 175,605 - 175,605
2023
At 1 January 149,342 2,783 152,125
Additions - 914 914
Transfer during the year 3,697 (3,697) =
Increase in fair value during the year 5,441 - 5,441
At 31 December 2023 158,480 B 158,480

On 31 December 2024, Land Sterling Property Consultants and Real Estate X, independent and
experienced professional valuers estimated the fair value of investment property at AED 173.1 million and
AED 178.2 million respectively (2023: Najmat Al Murjan Real Estate Valuation Service LLC and Arab Arch
consulting, independent and experienced professional valuers estimated the fair value of investment
property at AED 160.5 million and AED 156.5 million respectively). The Company has opted the average
of the two investment properties valuations. The valuers hold relevant professional qualifications and
experience. Investment property is held for capital appreciation and rental purposes. The fair value is in
accordance with relevant appraisal and standards issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) and Emirates Book Valuation standards (EBVS). The Company occupies an insignificant area of
11.5% (2023: 11.5%) in the investment property for use in its own business.

Details of the investment propetties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Fair value as at
31 December
31 December 2024 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 3
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Buildings and plots of land on which
such buildings are constructed - - 175,605 158,480

For investment properties categorised into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the following information is
relevant:

Valuation techniques Significant input(s)
Income capitalisation ~ Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
approach capitalisation of tental income potential,
nature of properties, and prevailing market
condition.

Yearly market rent, taking into account the
differences in location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size, between
the comparable and the investment
properties.

Sensitivity
A slight increase in the capitalisation

rate used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and vice versa.

A slight increase in the market rent
used would result in a significant
increase in fair value, and vice versa.

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6 Financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. This grouping is determined based on the lowest level of significant inputs used in
fair value measurement, as follows:

® Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets;

® Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

® Level 3 —inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2024 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in quoted equity securities (a) 1,754 - - 1,754
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Investment in quoted equity securities* (@) 443,091 - - 443,091
Investment in debt securities (a) 65,857 65,857
510,702 - - 510,702
31 December 2023
Financial assets at FI/TPL
Investment in quoted equity securities () 1773 - - 1,773
Financial assets at FVVTOCI
Investment in quoted equity securities* (2) 402,556 - - 402,556
Investment in debt securities (a) 75,037 . - 75,037
479,366 - - 479,366

* This comprises of quoted investment amounting to AED 12.8 million (2023: AED 13.9 million) which
are in the name of the Khalaf Ahmad Al Habtoor (Chairman) held for the beneficial interest of the

Company.
(8) Fair values have been determined by reference to quoted prices at the reporting date.
Movement in financial assets grouped in level 1

The reconciliation of catrying amounts of financial instruments classified within level 1 is as follows:

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Investments in equity securities at FVTOCI

Balance as at 1 Januaty 402,556 396,692
Purchases during the year 191 -
Increase in fair value 40,344 5,864
Balance as at 31 December 443,091 402,556
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6 Financial assets (continued)

Movement in financial assets grouped in level 1 (continued)

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Investments in equity securities at FVIPL
Balance as at 1 January 1,773 2,183
Decrease in fair value (19) (410)
Balance as at 31 December 1,754 1,773
Investments in debt securities at FVTOCI
Balance as at 1 January 75,037 76,010
Purchases during the year - 12,424
Disposal during the year (7,226) (13,528)
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value (1,954) 131
Balance as at 31 December 65,857 75,037

Investments in debt securities represents bonds catrying interest rate ranging from 4.3% to 6.3% per annum
(2023: 4.5% to 7.1% per annum),

7 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held,
that are in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 (Restated)
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilides Net
AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000

Insurance contracts

issued - (814,950) (814,950) - (222,243)  (222,243)
Reinsurance contracts
held 662,211 - 662,211 91,306 - 91,306

7 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and

the liability for incurred claims

31 December 2024 (Audited)
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Reversal of losses on onerous contracts
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Insurance service result

Insurance finance expense

Total changes in the statement of comprehensive

income/ (loss)
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other expenses paid
Insurance acquisition cash flows
Total cash flows
INet insurance contract liabilities as at
31 December

31 December 2023 (Audited)
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Reversal of losses on onerous contracts
Changes to liabilides for incurred claims

Insurance service result

Insurance finance (expense)/income

Total changes in the statement of comprehensive

income/(loss)

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Net insurance contract liabilities as at

31 December

Liabilities for remaining

Liabilities for incurred

coverage claims
Estimates of
Excluding the present
loss Loss value of future Risk
component  component cash flows adjustment Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000  AED’000 AED’000
(14,281) (4,542) (185,774) (17,646) (222,243)
469,122 - - - 469,122
(76,571) 1,572 (1,128,691) (45,914)  (1,249,604)
- - (1,075,750) (42,864)  (1,118,614)
(76,571) - - - (76,571)
- 1,572 - - 1,572
z - (52,941) (3,050) (55,991)
392,551 1,572 (1,128,691) (45,914) (780,482)
- - (340) - (340)
392,551 1,572 (1,129,031) (45,914) (780,822)
(469,556) - - - (469,556)
- - 589,142 - 589,142
68,529 - - - 68,529
(401,027) - 589,142 - 188,115
(22,757) (2,970) (725,663) (63,560) (814,950)
(6,473) (5,644) (205,570) (27,754) (245,441)
448,353 - - - 448,353
(69,098) 2,027 (306,884) 10,108 (363,847)
< - (208,099) 17,054 (191,045)
(69,098) - - - (69,098)
- 2,027 - - 2,027
- - (98,785) (6,946) (105,731)
379,255 2,027 (306,884) 10,108 84,506
- (925) 441 - (484)
379,255 1,102 (306,443) 10,108 84,022
(453,419) - - - (453,419)
5 - 326,239 - 326,239
66,356 : ; - 66,356
(387,063) - 326,239 - (60,824)
(14,281) (4,542) (185,774) (17,646) (222,243)
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E8 ZEU g dexpanpneg g For the year ended 31 December 2024
S 52858 SHSHNEAEAY BX
@ LD LE B o nls =+ T oo — 8 Statutory deposit
T dddaad & & -
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Held with a local bank in Dubai, UAE 10,000 10,000
ag N oo | 9w v ouneo n
Ss B 5 8 B3FSE '| B S : . : . . .
S oy i T Nt s N I e L tatutory deposit held with a local bank in Dubai, UAE represents deposits held under a lien in favour of
@ = =g - @ i the Ministry of Economy and Planning in accordance with changes to presentation and disclosure
concerning Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab
Emirates and regulation of its operations. The deposit cannot be withdrawn without prior approval from
- the Ministry of Economy and Planning,
g g2''‘'|2osgsges| g
= o I~ N LR n ol %0 9 Other receivables
é S8 EeY S== &
S 2 2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
faing o ' P I [ Prepa ents 22 230 16 084
58 L ad® NI =R [N = paym g /
S8 3ES &SR =98g 3 Other receivables 15,074 10,705
g ® ®© 2 ® —~ Rent receivables 8,426 8,147
Accrued interest 5,245 2,940
50,975 37,876
Expected credit losses (4,627) (4,576)
46,348 33,300
S8 8&8¢3'| &z ERBE" | =
ISE= Q‘ :_ g_ :o{ Sg_ 2 = ;, 3; .,";n (c'h{ The Company has recognised AED 4.6 million as a provision on doubtful rent receivables (2023: AED 4.6
g = M = = - g — million).
o) ) o N L3 B |
10 Related party transactions
The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums from and settles claims of other
958 ocrvaz Toemzleae | g businesses that fall within the definition o_f related patties as per IAS 24. These transactions are catried out
§ES CSHhIBE KLFLITRR™ =4 at terms mutually agreed between the parties.
= 0 oo Yo o © o~ I e ia! o o .
8‘ 5 8 4 HIZII% & _ The nature of significant related party transactions and amounts involved were as follows:
’ o T el el gl ey ot el
o 3 2024 2023
B £ AED’000 AED’000
. £
UO S - Premiums written 110,501 77,202
v ® § @ g On account claims payment made 168,759 11,203
9 ° "; S g Agency/non-agency repairs 24,283 18,488
g £ 2 3 g Commission paid 3,080 3,268
3 -+ s o 2 g b Key management personnel compensation
-g g g o E L’:\ g Shott term benefits 2,523 1,383
g o %‘ e 3 s E 5 2 3 Post-employment benefits 88 55
g @ =5 o 8 E: 3
- E 'E 5 % o A E 5 E 'g Quoted investment at FVTOCI amounting to AED 128 million as at 31 December 2024
§ 83 .E g & g _5 BE 5 (31 December 2023: quoted investment amounting to AED 13.9 million) is registered in the name of the
g ‘E a [ ﬁ - g oy E 5 2 g Chairman in the beneficial interest of the Company (refer to note 6 and note 30).
: g 3 32 Zeggéas _ : . . . :
& R g E K| E .E' o8 3 ‘g § (% g In April 2024, the Company recognised a significant property claim amounting to AED 754.7 million from
E 1% g g 23 2SE 508 nie Al Habtoor Motors Co LLC, a related party. The claim is primatily covered by facultative reinsurance
'g é’g e 8 _:3‘3' S £ 8§22 8&§ _%ﬂ E:g g arrangements. As a result, the Company recorded a reinsurance contract asset of AED 753.3 million.
g g g S§2¢e8cTB
-g ) ; 5 § - § s 8 8 _g g g8 & o 'g ~ a § g8 g During the year, the Company received AED 168 million from the reinsurers and the same has been paid
E 5 o| 2 § % = B3 8.5 §* &9 Ea g 2 ,% 23 g to Al Habtoor Motots Co LLC, resulting in a reduction of the insurance contract liabilities to AED 586.7
- ﬁg = 8 8 §u & § % S'E - § EgES “5% g = million and the reinsurance contract assets to AED 585.3 million.
Qo 2 2 Egk’\&uhgia:agg?gpg §¢
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11 Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise the following statement of financial position amounts:

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Cash in hand 10 10
Cash at banks 246,312 200,604
246,322 200,614

Cash at banks includes deposits with local banks carrying interest ranging from 2.5% - 5.27%
(31 December 2023: 3.10% - 5.25%) per annum.

As per management’s assessment, expected credit loss on cash and cash equivalents is immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled
to the related items in the financial items in the statement of financial position:

2024 2023

AED’000 AED000

Cash and bank balances 246,322 200,614
Bank deposits with maturity over 3 months (29,825) (139,577)
Cash and cash equivalents 216,497 61,037

12 Share capital
The authorised and issued share capital comprises 115,500,000 fully paid-up shares of AED 1 each:

2024 2024 2023 2023
No. of shares AED'000 No. of shares AED'000
Balance as at 31 December 115,500,000 115,500 115,500,000 115,500
13 Reserves
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Article 241 of the Federal Law No. (32) of
2021, a minimum of 10% of the Company’s annual net profits must be transferred to a non-distributable
statutory reserve . As per the Company’s Articles of Association, such transfers are required until the
balance in the statutory reserve equals 50% of the Company’s paid-up share capital. No transfer to statutory
teserve has been made during the year as it has already reached 50% of the paid-up share capital
(31 December 2023: Nil).

General reserve

Transfers to the general reserve are made on the recommendation of the Board of Directors. This reserve
may be used for such purposes as deemed appropriate by the Boatd of Directors. During the year, there
were no transfers from or to the general reserve (31 December 2023: no transfers)

Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Article 34 of Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No. 23 of 2019,
concerning instructions organising reinsurance operations, the reserve is not available for distribution and
will not be disposed of without prior approval from the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates. The
Company has transferred AED 1.3 million from ‘Retained earnings’ to the ‘Reinsurance Reserve’ being
0.5% of the total insurance premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31 December 2024 (year
ended 31 December 2023: AED 1.2 million).

14 Employees’ end of service benefits

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Balance at 1 January 4,726 4,299

Charge for the year 1,030 870

Payments during the year (1,016) (443)

Balance at 31 December 4,740 4,726
15 Other payables

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Accrued expenses 8,262 11,347

Other payables 9,701 5,184

Directors’ remuneration * 6,128 4,595

Rent advances 3,095 7,055

27,186 28,181

* Directors’ remuneration is an appropriation of net profit for the year in accordance with Article 171 of
U.A.E Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and also as per the Articles of Association of the Company.

16 Insurance service expenses
Medical

Motor  General & life Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000

2024
Incurred claims and other expenses (171,334)  (863,159) (84,121)  (1,118,614)
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows (34,985) (11,958) (29,628) (76,571)
Reversals of losses on onerous contracts 1,723 - (151) 1,572
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims 26,964  (24,830) (58,125) (55,991)
(177,632)  (899,947)  (172,025) (1,249,604)

2023
Incurred claims and other expenses (48,745) (24,952)  (117,348) (191,045)
Amorttisation of insurance acquisition cash flows (25,864) (10,619) (32,615) (69,098)
Reversals of losses on onerous contracts 2,027 - - 2,027
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims (19,714) (4,815) (81,202) (105,731)
(92,296) (40,386)  (231,165) (363,847)
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17 Net insurance financial result

Medical &
Motor  General life Total
AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2024
Interest accretion on insurance contracts using
locked-in rate (141) (255) 179 (217)
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial
assumptions (1,116) 2,107 (1,114) (123)
Total insurance finance (expense)/income
from insurance contracts issued (1,257) 1,852 (935) (340)
Due to changes in profit rates and other financial
assumptions 1,630 (1,994) 5,011 4,647
Reinsurance finance income/(expense) from
reinsurance contracts held 1,630 (1,994) 5,011 4,647
2023
Interest accretion on insurance contracts using
locked-in rate (1,585) (343) (320) (2,248)
Change in interest rates and other financial
assumptions 512 430 822 1,764
Total insurance finance (expense)/income from
insurance contracts issued (1,073) 87 502 (484)
Due to changes in profit rates and other financial
assumptions 696 (110) (3,763) (3,177)
Reinsurance finance income/ (expense) from
reinsurance contracts held 696 (110 (3,763) (3,177)
18 Income from investments
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Dividend income on securities 24,341 15,309
Interest income 13,221 10,945
37,562 26,254
19 Income from investment properties
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Net rental income 8,747 5,917
Gain from change in fair value of investment properties (note 5) 16,931 5,441
25,678 11,358

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
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20 Other operating expenses

Staff costs
Professional and legal fee
Other operational expenses

21 Earnings per share

Earnings (AED’000):
Profit for the year after tax

Number of shares (AED’000):
Weighted average number of ordinary shates for the purpose of basic
and diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share (AED):
Basic and diluted

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
325 1,388

1,589 740
6,924 530
8,838 2,658
2024 2023
53,544 47,120
115,500 115,500
0.46 0.41

The Company does not have potentially diluted shares and accordingly diluted earnings per share equals

basic earnings per share.

22 Dividends

The Boatd proposed cash dividend of 10% of paid up share capital, amounting to AED 11.55 million (AED
0.10 per share) for the year ended 31 December 2023. This was approved at the Annual General Meeting

held on 25 April 2024 and distributed on 15 May 2024.

During the comparative year, the Board proposed cash dividend of 10% of paid up share capital, amounting
to AED 11.55 million (AED 0.10 per share) for the year ended 31 December 2022. This was approved at
the Annual General Meeting held on 18 April 2023 and distributed on 9 May 2023.

23 Segment information

The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets, liabilities and equity classified by segment:

Underwriting Investments Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2024
Total assets 675,262 981,384 1,656,646
Total equity 596,504 206,642 803,146
Total liabilities 840,428 13,072 853,500
2023
Total assets 113,718 864,087 977,805
Total equity 554,510 168,145 722,655
Total liabilities 246,982 8,168 255,150

Integrated Report 2024 | 45



Dubai National Insurance

DNI

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements

=
g ?3 § ﬁ §) § 5 =lg § %‘ ;u..’; g g Q19 ;::. 3 &) 8 For the year ended 31 December 2024
i:g. = “@ g gn s %» N %.. RSP g; 3 =N c\‘ﬂ; 5 23 Segment information (continued)
p: = < G written premiums
g ross [
= Details relating to gross written premiums are disclosed below to comply with the requitements of CBUAE
= o i = o ol sl ol st sl aal I 4 ol 2 (T and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.
: g8 & 35 I I : . RLAzbes of
« Q EA <] = = Life Fund Medical Property & business
S g g E 2024 Insurance Accumulation Insurance Liability = combined
E & AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED’000  AED’000
5>
= Direct written
[-14] 2 e | = ' ' ] ) ~— [
8¢ 58 85 SSHF = g Elg |8 g% premiums 1,693 - 197,772 280,667 480,132
£ ‘g B> o feslsl 4 < Sl | o ) & Assumed business
E 2 g @ 8~ 17 7 Foreign - - - - -
oz & Local ’ - - 62,278 62,278
Eo E Total assumed business - - - 62,278 62,278
b - o~ o~ 7o) -~ & o —~ o~ e~ =l N e Total gross written
4 E g g.% SEE! s gl 2% 318 38 |§ g8 premiums 1,693 : 197,772 342,945 542,410
gg‘ % g gggg o] & &3 T[T |8 LB 2023
8 o ik Direct written
- premiums - i B ,284
¢z - i 2,031 221,786 220,467 444,28
Eg g Assumed business
3 § g § [} 1 1 1 L] ] 1 g g 3 ] 1 ] g ] ) g Foreig-n - = . - e
Eg< £ A w8l “ g Local g ; : 6,475 6,475
28 & B E Total assumed business = = = 6,475 6,475
g N8 T i
58 2 otal gross written
g = premiums 2,031 - 221,786 226,942 450,759
g o8
E-Eg éng gg §§§5 g B %‘%‘ § ' | &) 24 Corporate tax
g " Z A2 L S of o8 1 L & | o=l ; o
B PES g e g § HE 2B o TN &lél The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the
E ‘;‘_.ua g E a3 < UAE tax rate of 9% (2023: Nil) and the reported tax expense in profit or loss is as follows:
— S|
. § g 5 2024 2023
_ 80 > AED’000  AED’000
&} «
% = g @ Statement of profit or loss:
g 3§ g & = g Current tax 1,354 -
- 2 éé‘ g E E Deferred tax expense 1,524
(=] < 5 . ™ Q
&
% - § E‘ J g % 3] Statement of comprehensive income
g i 28 ‘E g 2 B Deferred tax expense 3,746 5
g i‘ E) (g vé: g g § g g - Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit:
= . ] (1)
: oglf 7iz S ;2 w4202
; e S a
3 %E i ] % g '5 ) § a 8 g g < g 5 Profit for the year before taxation 56,422 <
« BElS 4 3 & 8 5 3 & g g o o & -] Basic exemption limit (375) 5
2 i:"-f § 2 EEG g § & E a £ 2 s = g é‘ E Tax applicable profit 56,047 -
g 548% s3: gf Bz . .8, G5F & B
2 oo £ % == 5'5‘ g S g 3 Eg E €g @ 2 g 2 Tax at the applicable rate of 9% (5,044) =
o -6 o) '2 w = Q W = @ u o ] 5 Q S =R . ¥ i 5 5 "
= 29| E £ g % %- v g 4 g_‘ € BB E g—--u H & 2 5 Effect of items that are not considered in determining taxable income -
o -1 @ o o B L L% o
T &% 58 53%3'553 T EEE B 4 & 24 Evempt 2,192
S o E o' @9 SE g8 & B g g 85§ §5§ Y g g & xempt income g =
g g | E g %DO 832, g E § g g E § g g g g & d Unrealised loss (3
A - 3 B & $ 828 _5 g g g &€& 8 9 3 - % a Non-deductible expenses (23) 3
= ® E § gi g g -g E § g E g E E E g g - 8 g g \é Income tax expense (2,878) -
| 25 o Y3 2223 g8 2 988 2888 858 Profit for the year after taxation 53,544 5
g 28| g 2568 EEE°2372 § £587 8232z 23354

Integrated Report 2024 | 47

IN
o)



Dubai National Insurance

DNI

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

25 Total investment income and net insurance result

The table below presents an analysis of total investment income and insurance finance result recognised in
profit or loss and OCI in the year:

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Investment income
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss
Interest income 13,221 10,945
Dividend income from financial investments 24,341 15,309
Net income from investment properties 25,678 11,358
Other income - 60
Total net investment income 63,240 37,672
Insurance finance expense from insurance contracts issued
Interest accreted to insurance contracts using locked-in rate (217) (2,248)
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions (123) 1,764
Total insurance finance expense from insurance contracts
issued (340) (484)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (340) (484)
Amounts recognised in OCI - -
Reinsurance finance income/(expense) from reinsurance
contracts held
Interest accreted to reinsurance contracts using locked-in rate 3,623 3,154
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions 1,024 (6,331)
Reinsurance finance income/(expense) from reinsurance
contracts held 4,647 (3,177)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 4,647 (3,177)
Amounts recognised in OCI - -
Total net investment income, insurance finance expense and
reinsurance finance income 67,547 34,011
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit ot loss 67,547 34,011
Amounts recognised in OCI - -

26 Commitments and contingencies
2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Financial guarantees 1,029 943

Guarantees of AED 1.03 million (2023: AED 0.93 million) issued by banks ate secured by way of deposits
held.

The Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. Although the ultimate outcome
of these claims cannot presently be determined, adequate provisions have been made for any liability that
may result, based on management’s best estimates.

27 Capital commitments

At the statement of financial position date, the Company has commitments towards the capital work in
progtess of AED 45 million (2023: AED 58 million).

28 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an ordexly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable ot
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
charactetistics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Management considers that the camrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortised cost in the financial information approximate their fair values except for financial investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income of which fair value is determined based on the
quoted matket prices and disclosed in Note 6 of this financial information.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value
Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of assets are determined using similar valuation techniques and assumptions as used in the
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degtee to which the fair value is observable.

The following table provides an analysis of financial and non- financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable:

° Level 1 the fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting year. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

® Level 2 the fair value of financial instrtuments that ate not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximizes the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
unobservable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

o Level 3 if one or mote of the significant inputs is not based on observable matket data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.
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28 Fair value measurements (continued)

Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting year. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:

Valuation Relationship of
techniques  Significant unobservable
Fair value and key unobservable inputs to fair
Fair value as at hierarchy inputs input value
Financial assets 2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000
Quoted bid
Quoted debt prices in an
securities 65,857 75,037  Level1 active market None N/A
Quoted bid
Quoted equity prices in an
securities 444,845 404,329  Level 1 active market None N/A

There were no transfers between levels during the year, There are no financial liabilities which should be
measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.

29 Risk management

Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncettainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insuted events are random, and the actual number
and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical
techniques.

Expetience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across
the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting
strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a
sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to
enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.

Frequency and severity of claims

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductibles and
to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the company to pursue third
parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy
limits the total exposure to any one tetritory and the exposure to any one industry.

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)
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29 Risk management (continued)

Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commetcial replacement value of the
properties and contents insured and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable
on occutrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding propetties, of replacement ot indemnity fot contents
and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of
claims under these policies. The insurance risk arising from insurance contracts is not concentrated in any
of the territories in which the company operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal
properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of
vehicles. The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor
vehicles are the key factors that influence the level of claims. For marine insurance the main risks are loss
or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well divetsified in
terms of vessels and shipping routes covered. For medical insurance, the main risks are illness and related
healthcare costs. For group life and personal accident, the main risks are claims from death and permanent
or partial disability. The Company generally does not offer medical insurance to walk-in customets. Medical,
group life and personal accident insurance are generally offered to corporate customers with large
population to be covered under the policy.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all
insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of
the contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims
provision includes incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject
to a greater degree of uncertainty compared to the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified
to the Company, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent
to the insurance company until many yeats after the event that gave tise to the claims. For some insurance
contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations
between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these
liabilities.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow
for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing
claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the otiginal liability
established.

The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development
of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts are also subject to the emergence of
new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the end of reporting period.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation
techniques are based on Actuarial calculation which can be based purely on historical development of claims
or BExpected Loss Ratios or a combination of both. The method and weightage are based on the metrit of
the line of business.
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29 Risk management (continued)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The Expected Loss-Ratio estimate is an impottant assumption in the estimation technique and is based on
previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market
experience and historical claims inflation.

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance are analysed
below by line of business where the insured operates for current and prior year premium earned.

2024 2023
Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss
ratio ratio ratio Ratio
General 755% 31% 31% 15%
Motor 116% 1% 64% 71%
Medical and Life 87% 82% 82% 63%

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year-end are
adequate. However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities
provided in the financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions.
It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or
uncertainty in the estimation process.

A hypothetical 1% change in the loss ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting income /
(loss) as follows:
For the year ended 31 December

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000

Impact of change in loss ratio by +/- 1%
Motor 1,069 936
General 338 90
Medical and Life 749 1,083
2,156 2,109

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with these insurance contracts ate complex and subject to a number of vatiables that
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is detived mostly from the Company’s quarterly
claims reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the reporting date to derive
data for the contracts held. The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and in patticular the
industries in which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This information
is used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate
number of claims,

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of
the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this
has meant that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual
accident years or groups of accident years within the same class of business.
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29 Risk management (continued)

Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large
insurance claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties
for reinsurance purposes.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurance companies and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from
similar geographic regions, activities ot economic characteristics of the reinsurance. Reinsurance ceded
contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to participants. The Company remains liable to
its participants for the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations
assumed under the reinsurance agreements.

Sensitivities
The liability for incurred claims is sensitive to the key assumptions in the table below. It has not been
possible to quantify the sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the

estimation process. The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, net profit
and equity for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant.

The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to
demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis.

It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear. The method used for deriving
sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous period.

Impact on Impact on Impact on Impacton

net profit net profit equity equity

Change in (gross of (net of (gross of (net of

2024 assumptions  reinsurance) reinsurance) reinsurance) feinsurance)

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Risk Adjustment +1% (6,356) (151) 6,356 151

Discount rate +1% 179 10 (179) (10)

Risk adjustment -1% 6,356 151 (6,356) (151)

Discount rate -1% (179) (10) 179 10
2023

Risk Adjustment +1% (176) (18) 176 18

Discount rate +1% 3,064 1,481 (3,064) (1,481)

Risk Adjustment -1% 176 18 (176) (18)

Discount rate -1% (3,064) (1,481) 3,064 1,481
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29 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk
Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
profit rates and equity price risk.

Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

¢ reinsurance’ share of insurance liabilities;

* amounts due from reinsurance in respect of claims already paid;
¢ amounts due from insurance contract holders; and

e amounts due from insurance intermediaries.

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as
primary policyholder. If a reinsurance fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the
payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurance company is considered on an annual basis by
reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts
regular business. The exposute to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the
right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company.

Management information reported to the management includes details of provisions for impairment on
insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs. Exposures to individual participants and groups of participants
are collected within the ongoing monitoring of the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to
individual participants, or homogenous groups of participants, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted
for reinsurance is carried out by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterpatties having similar characteristic, other than insurance receivables at the end of reporting period. The
Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. Concentration of
credit risk did not exceed 10% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks registered in the United Arab Emirates.
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29 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with management, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments. The contractual
maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to
ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
repayment arrangements is given below:

Less than 91-180 181-365 Above
2024 90 days days days 365 days Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Financial assets

At FVTOCI (note 6) - - - 508,948 508,948
At FVTPL (note 6) - - - 1,754 1,754
Statutory deposits - - - 10,000 10,000
Reinsurance contract assets 172,333 149,476 257,650 82,752 662,211
Other receivables 15,585 431 28,932 1,400 46,348
Cash and bank balances -
profit bearing 62,357 1,724 115,759 5,602 185,442
Cash and bank balances -
non-profit bearing - - - 60,880 60,380
250,275 151,631 402,341 671,336 1,475,583
Financial liabilities
Insurance and reinsurance
contract liabilities 215,015 189,138 308,542 102,255 814,950
Other payables 13,605 380 11,949 1,252 27,186
228,620 189,518 320,491 103,507 842,136
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29 Risk management (continued)
Financial risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than 91-180 181-365 Above

2023 90 days days days 365 days Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Financial assets

At FVTOCI (note 6) - - - 477,593 477,593
At FVIPL (note 6) - - - 1,773 1,773
Statutory deposits - - - 10,000 10,000
Reinsurance contract assets 44390 21,415 17,194 8,307 91,306
Other receivables 12,476 643 16,445 3,736 33,300
Cash and bank balances -
profit bearing 24,692 66,525 63,050 40,789 195,056
Cash and bank balances -
non-profit bearing - - - 5,558 5,558
81,558 88,583 96,689 547,756 814,586
Financial liabilities
Insurance and reinsurance
contract liabilities 126,848 56,264 26,778 8,307 222,243
Other payables 9,329 9,490 5,024 4,338 28,181
136,177 65,754 31,802 12,645 250,424

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance income or finance
cost of the Company. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk on its financial investments
in debt instruments and term deposits since they catry fixed interest rates. As such, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Company generally manages to minimise the interest rate risk by closely monitoring the market interest
rates and investing in those financial assets in which such risk is expected to be minimal.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on:
(1) Liability for incurred claims; and
(if) Asset for incurred claims.

The tables on next page show the impact of 1% change in risk adjustment and discounting on liability for
incurred claims and assets for incurred claims:

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (P.S.C.)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

29 Risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Impact on profit Impacton profit Impacton equity Impacton equity
31 December 2024 (gross of (net of 0§S net
reinsurance) reinsurance reinsurance) reinsurance)
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Risk Adjustment
1% increase (6,356) (151) 6,356 151
1% decrease 6,356 151 (6,356) (151)
Discounting
1% increase 179 10 179) (10)
1% decrease (179) (10) 179 10
31 December 2023
Risk Adjustment
1% increase (176) (18) 176 18
1% decrease 176 18 (176) (18)
Discounting
1% increase 3,064 1,481 (3,064) (1,418)
1% decrease (3,064) (1,481) 3,064 1,418

30 Capital risk management
The Company’s objective when managing capital risks are:

1) To comply with the Insurance Capital Requirements required by the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023,
concerning Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab
Emirates and regulation of its operations.

2) To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns to the shareholders.

3) To provide an adequate rate of return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurate with
the level of risk.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to the shareholders or issue new shates.

The minimum regulatory capital for Insurance Companies which must be maintained at all times throughout
the year as per the Law is AED 100,000,000 (2023: AED 100,000,000).
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30 Capital risk management {continued)

There were no changes made in the objectives, capital management policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The table below summarises the minimum regulatory capital of the Company and the actual equity held by
the Company at the end of the year:

2024 2023

AED’000 AED’000

Cash and cash equivalents 246,322 200,614
Total equity held 803,146 722,655
Minimum regulatory capital 100,000 100,000

Section 2 of the Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies (the “Regulations”) issued by the Central
Bank of UAE identifies the required solvency margin to be held in addition to insurance liabilities. The
solvency margin must be maintained at all times throughout the year. The Company is subject to the
Regulations which has been complied with during the year. The Company has incorporated in its policies
and procedures the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with these Regulations.

The table on the below summarises the Minimum Capital Requirement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and
Solvency Capital Requirement of the Company and the total capital held to meet these solvency margins
as defined in the Regulations.

2024 2023
AED’000 AED’000

Minimum capital requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency capital requirement (SCR) 204,120 163,935
Minimum guarantee fund (MGF) 68,040 56,230
Basic own funds 369,057 356,678
MCR solvency margin — surplus 269, 057 256,678
SCR solvency margin — surplus 164,937 192,743
MGF solvency margin — surplus 301,017 300,448

The Company’s financial assets include quoted investment at FVTOCI amounting to AED 12.8 million as
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: quoted investment amounting to AED 13.9 million) which are
in the name of the Chairman held for the beneficial interest of the Company. In accordance with circular
number CBUAE/BIS/2023/729 of CBUAE, it is not considered as admissible in regulatory statement of
financial position by the Company.

Based on the Central Bank of UAE regulatory requirements, the minimum regulatory capital required is
AED 100 million (31 December 2023: AED 100 million) against which the paid up capital of the Company
is AED 115.5 million (31 December 2023: AED 115.5 million).

The Company and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital
requirements throughout the year. There have been no changes in the Company’s management of capital
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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FRAMEWORK.

—

A

Committed to Excellence,
Guided by Governance.

In line with our vision to position corporate

governance as a cornerstone of sustainable business,

Dubai National Insurance and Reinsurance (P.S.C)
continued in 2024 to strengthen its governance
framework in full compliance with the latest
regulations issued by the Central Bank of the UAE
(CBUAE) and the Securities and Commodities
Authority (SCA). Our commitment to transparency,
accountability, and regulatory alignment is deeply
embedded in our corporate culture, driving trust,
resilience, and long-term growth.

Throughout the year, the company implemented key
governance enhancements, including reinforcing
board independence and oversight, improving
internal controls and risk management, and

advancing digital tools for compliance and reporting.

The company also focused on maintaining high
standards of ethical conduct, transparency, and
disclosure across all levels. Sustainability and social
responsibility remained embedded within the
governance framework, with ESG principles actively
reflected in our practices and initiatives.

These efforts reaffirm Dubai National Insurance and
Reinsurance (P.S.C)'s ongoing commitment to strong
governance, regulatory excellence, and sustainable

-~ value creation for all stakeholders.

02 STATEMENT FOR THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS MEMEER'S TRANSACTIONS
WITH THE COMPANY.

The Board Members, their spouses and children, are required to adhere
to the Board-approved rules on disclosure and transparency when
dealing or trading in the company's shares, in compliance with
regulatory regulations and the company's Memorandum of Association.

Statement of the securities transactions of Board Members, their
spouses, and children during 2024, is outlined in the following table:

Total Sale Total Purchase
f < R Shares owned as at 2 : = :
Title/Relationship 31.12.2024 Transactions during [Transactions during
e 2024 2024
/a n/a

H.E. Khalaf Ahmad

Mohammed Al Habtoor Egleman 31,208
M Sa e Vice Chairman 3,527,381 n/a n/a
Habtoor
Mr-Ehmstikhalat Chairman’s Son 19,404 n/a n/a

Ahmad Al Habtoor

A company owned by Mr.
Khalaf Ahmad Mohammed Al 32,649,636 n/a n/a
Habtoor and others

Al Habtoor Investment
(LLC)

DiibalNatehal A company owned by Mr.

Khalaf Ahmad Mohammed Al 11,800,000 n/a n/a
Investment LLC
Habtoor and others
Sultan Ahmad Al A company owned by Mr.
Habtoor Investment Sultan Ahmad Al Habtoor 8,180,314 n/a n/a
Group LLC and others

*No trading of the company shares was made during 2024 by board members,
and spouse and children or by the company’s employees.

*No shares of the company are owned by any board members, and spouse and
children except the mentioned in the table above.
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03 FORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

A. STATEMENT ON BOARD COMPOSITION

lr. Sultan Ahmad

Al Habtoor
Vice Chairman
Non-executive

member
/ non--independent

Dr. Fatema Ahmed Al
Otaiba
Board member
non-executive member
/ independent

Mr. Ghaith Ahmed Al
Marri
Board member

THE BOARD OF

The Board of Directors consists in the year 2024 of the following:

Recognized as one of the UAE's most distinguished

Mr. Ebrahim Juma Al
Madani
Board member
non-executive member
/ independent

Businessman. He headed many administrative
positions in many institutions and associations Has
experience in oversight, compliance with public
policies, and risk considerations in cultural
governance. Board member from 2021 till 2024
(resigned)

Mr. Abdulla Fadhel Al
Mazrooei member
non-executive member
/ independent

Businessman. Held several administrative
and leadership roles across various
institutions and associations. Has experience
in governance, oversight, compliance with
public  policies, and risk management,
particularly within cultural and public sector
frameworks. Served as a board member from
2016 till 2024 (resigned).

H.E. Khalaf Ahmad
Al Habtoor
Chairman
Non-executive member
/ non--independent

businessmen, he has earned widespread respect within the
business community. His contributions to fostering intercultural
understanding, supporting humanitarian initiatives, and
advancing scientific research have earned him several honorary
doctorates from prestigious global institutions. Notably, he
received an honorary doctorate from the American University in
Cairo, as well as honorary doctorates in humanities from the
University of Illinois and the American University of Science and
Technology in Beirut. As the founder and chairman of Al
Habtoor Group, he brings over 40 years of experience in
business administration and economic leadership, solidifying
his influential role in the region’s business landscape. Founder
and board member since 1991.

One of the prominent businessmen in the
United Arab Emirates, he holds a bachelor's
degree in business administration from a
prestigious British university. He is the
Chairman of Al Habtoor Motors and has over
35 years of professional experience. He has
been a member of the Board of Directors
since 1991.

Holds a PhD in Social Psychology and a Master’s
in Education and Psychology. Has extensive
experience in educational management and
talent development. Served as Head of the
Educational Zones Management Department
and Head of the Gifted and Talented
Department at the Ministry of Education. Board
member since 2021.

Holds an MBA and a Bachelor of Science in Air
Transport  Management. Has  diverse
experience in aviation, corporate leadership,
and humanitarian work, and is a graduate of
the Emirates Aviation Academy National Cadet
Programme. Has experience in financial
oversight and operational risk management
through leadership roles in business. Board

non-executive member memper since September 2024.

/ independent

He is the founder and chairman of several a
leading UAE-based companies operating across
hospitality, real estate, education, insurance, and
publishing. Holds a degree in Hotel

' Management,  with  additional  business
Mr. Mohammed  Certifications from the University of Surrey,
Kkhalaf University of Slough, and Cornell University.

Al Haricaol, Brings extensive experience in strategic
Board member en s £ ¢ ¢ ight d i
Non-executive |€@dership, investment oversight, and executive

member governance. Board member since 2003.
/ non-independent

Holds various qualifications in language and

management from British and American

academies. Has experience in management,

cultural affairs, and governance oversight, with

' exposure to risk assessment and audit-related

processes in governmental and institutional

Mr. Mohammed Abdulla Al settings. He previously held prestigious

e rd"::imw positic?ns where r_'le wa_s responsible for

non-executive member COMpliance and policy review. Board member
/independent since 2021.

Holds a bachelor’s in finance from the Higher
Colleges of Technology and a Master's in Global
Financial Trade from Coventry University. Has
expertise in financial security, risk management,
. and regulatory compliance. Currently works as a
Specialist at the Economical Security Center of
Mr. Khalfan Sultan Al SuwaidPubai with a focus on financial crimes, economic

SMM';'WWM risk assessment, and governance control.
non-executive mem :
bl Appointed as Board member November 2024

subject to CBUAE approval.

B. STATEMENT
DIRECTORS ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2024

e The board has appointed Mr. Ghaith Ahmed Al Marri as a board member with CBUAE
approval instead of Mr. Abdulla Fadhel Al Mazrooei who resigned on the 15th of July 2025
for personal reasons.

* The board has appoinited Mr. Khalfan Sultan Al Suwaidi was appointed as a board member
instead of Mr. Ebrahim Joumaa who resigned on the 12th November 2024 for personal
reasons. (subject to CBUAE Approval).

OF THE PERCENTAGE OF FEMALE

On April 25, 2024, Dr. Fatima Ahmed Al Otaiba was re-elected as an
independent, non-executive board member. Dr. Fatima Ahmed Al-Otaiba is
the first woman to win membership in the Board of Directors of Dubai
National Insurance and Reinsurance Company.

C. STATEMENT OF THE REASONS FOR NOT NOMINATING/
ELECTING FEMALE DIRECTORS ON THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
N/A

D. STATEMENT OF THE REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS.

According to the Company’s memorandum of association, and pursuant to the
above decision, the bonus of directors shall be determined through a proposal
or recommendation submitted by the board to the General Assembly.
Accordingly, the following actions were taken:

1- Remunerations of directors paid in 2023:

The total remunerations of the directors paid in 2023 was AED 4,594,591/-
knowing that the directors did not receive any allowances for attending board
meetings or its committees during 2021 being content with the designated
bonus.
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2- Total proposed Remunerations of the directors for 2024 to be presented at
the Annual General Assembly Meeting for approval:

As for 2024, and in accordance with the above, the bonus of directors to be
submitted to the Genera!l Assembly for approval is AED 6,128,509/-

3- Detailed statement of the attendance allowances for the meetings of the
board committees held in FY 2024:
The directors did not receive any allowances for attending the meetings of
the board committees during 2024.

4- Details of the additional allowances or salaries or fees received by a
member of the Board of Directors, other than the allowances for attending
committees, and their reasons.

There's no received additional allowances or salaries or fees by a member of
the Board of Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS.

The board held six meetings in 2024. The following are the dates of these
meetings, attended by directors as shown in the table below:

First 18/03/2024 All members attended

All members attended

Soddie Falbadied Except Mr. Mr. Abdulla Fadhel Al Mazrooei
All members attended

Third 14/08/2024 Except Mr. Mr. Abdulla Fadhel Al Mazrooei

(resigned)
Fourth 30/09/2024 All members attended
: All directors attended
et 1502024 Except Mr. Ebrahim Juma Al Madani (resigned)

Six 27/12/2024 All members attended

E. NUMBER OF THE BOARD RESOLUTIONS PASSED DURING
THE 2024 FISCAL YEAR, ALONG WITH ITS MEETING
CONVENTION DATES.

The board issued two board meeting by circulation dates as as shown in the
table below:

First 31/07/2024

Second 29/11/2024

F. DUTIES AND TERMS OF REFERENCE DELEGATED BY THE
BOARD TO THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT.

The Board of Directors delegated the following duties and competences to
the executive management, represented by:

1- Mr. A.R. Srinivasan

e Copacity: Company’s Chief Executive Officer -Member of the Investment
Committee & Risk Committee.

e Duties and Powers: shall be as follows: -

“

e Key Executive Managment, appointed by the board of
directors.

The validi
e Manages the overall operation s of the company and B
. . o . . of  these
leads it towards its objectives and to achieve its goals. .
e Responsible for implementing the strategies, policies Shall Ba
and procedures set out by the board. i
, , , unlimited
e Responsible for oversight of the company’s key —
business lines.
cancelled

e Ensuring the company’s compliance with applicable
laws, regulations, and corporate governance standards.

e Managing the financial performance and representing
the company to stakeholders

s Decision making in areas such as resource allocation
and partnership.
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H. ASTATEMENT OF THE DETAILS OF TRANSACTIONS

MADE WITH THE RELATED PARTIES (STAKEHOLDERS). 0COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF

During 2024, the Company, as a part of its regular work duties, has DIRECTORS
collected premiums and paid compensation to other parties under the
description of shareholders in accordance with International Accounting

; . . . 1. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Standards. In their totality, the premiums and compensations were

related to transactions involving Al Habtoor Group LLC., a company owned A. Mohammed Abdulla Al Haj, as a Head of Audit Committee, acknowledges
by the Chairman of Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance P.S.C. and its my responsibility for the committee system at the company, review of its
associates providing insurance services. The details of the transactions work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

made between shareholders are as follows:

B. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS, SPECIALIZATION AND
FUNCTIONS.

AED 000

“
Written Premiums 110,502

Board member
Paid Claims 168,759 1 Mr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Haj (Independent)
and Head of the Committee

Paid Commissions 3,080 ‘ b

2 Dr. Fatema Ahmed Al Qtaiba (Independent)
Agency and Non-agency Repairs 24,283

3 Mr. D Nagasubramanian Financial and accounting expert

Duration of the Committee:
The duration of the Committee, for thr above stated composition, shall be three
years and until the end of FY 2026.

Committee work system:

The Audit Committee shall hold its meeting at least once every three months or
whenever necessary. Moreover, the Rapporteur shall keep the minutes of its
meetings and final copies thereof shall be sent to the members after being
approved for keeping purpose.

Duties and obligations of the Committee:

e Develop and implement the contracting policy with the External Auditor,
submit a report to the board specifying the significant findings that need an
action to be taken, and recommend the steps necessary to be implemented.

e Follow-up and control the independency and objectivity of the External
Auditor, in addition to discussing the nature and scope of the Audit and its
effectiveness in accordance with the approved auditing standards.

e Control the integrity of the annual, semi-annual and quarterly financial
statements and reports of the company and review them as a part of their
regular work duties during the year and after closing the accounts in any
given quarter. The Committee should focus, in particular, on the following:
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1) Making any changes to the accounting policies and practices.

Making substantial modifications resulting from the Audit.

Complying with accounting standards determined by the Authority.

4) Complying with the principles of inciusion, disclosure and other legal
requirements related to the preparation of financial reports.

Coordinate with the board, Executive Management, and Chief Finance

Officer, or the Acting Chief Finance Officer or Manager, to perform its

duties. The Committee shouid hold meetings with the external zuditors

of the Company at least once a year.

Review the financial control, internal control, and risk management

systems of the Company.

Discuss the internal control system with the administration and ensure

that it fulfills its duty by estabiishing an effective internal contro! system.

Consider the results of major investigations on internal control issues

assigned to it by the board or through the initiative of the Committee

itself and the approva! of the Management.

Review the financial and accounting policies and procedures of the

Company.

Review the statement of the externai auditor’s statement, its work plan

and address any substantial inquiries submitted by the auditor to the

Executive Management regarding accounting recoerds, financial accounts

or control systems to be rejected or approved.

Ensure that the board responds, in a timely manner, to the requests of

clarifications and material findings raised in the statement of the external

Auditor.

Ensure the application of the work regulations regarding the duties and

the powers assigned to the Committee by the board.

Submit a report to the board on the issues mentioned in this clause

Following-up and supervising the transactions of insiders prepa

5
1
i
‘
)
,
%
!
A

register and submitting relevant reports. -

Consider any other issues determined by the board. -

C. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS, SPECIALIZATION AND
FUNCTIONS.

The Audit Committee held four meetings in 2024 attended by the
members as shown in the table below:

First 15/03/2024 All members attended
Second 07/05/2024 All members attended
Third 06/08/2024 All members attended
Fourth 05/11/2024 All members attended

D. ANNUAL AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

1- Significant Matters Reviewed by the Committee Concerning Financial Statements
and How They Were Addressed the Audit Committee reviewed the Annual Financial
Report for 2024 and confirmed that:

e During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2024, with a focus on significant areas requiring expert
judgment. In particular, the committee discussed the valuation of reinsurance
contract assets and insurance contract liabilities, a key matter identified in the
external audit.

The committee evaluated the accounting treatment, assumptions, and disclosures
related to these balances and ensured alignment with applicable IFRS
requirements. Discussions were held with both management and the external
auditor to confirm the robustness of the underlying methodologies and data used.
Based on the committee’s review and the auditor’'s confirmation, the financial
statements were endorsed as fairly presented, with no material concerns raised.

2. An explanation of how the committee assessed the independence and effectiveness
of the external audit process, the approach taken for appointing or reappointing the
external auditor, and information on the tenure of the current audit firm:

e The Audit Committee evaluated the independence and performance of the external

auditor as part of its annual review process. The assessment considered the
auditor’s objectivity, audit planning and execution, quality of communication with
management, and adherence to professional and regulatory standards.

The Committee confirmed that the external auditor maintained full independence
throughout the engagement and did not perform any non-audit services that could
compromise objectivity. The auditor’s performance was deemed effective based on
the quality of their work and technical insight during the audit cycle.

The appointment and reappointment process followed the company’s governance
framework, ensuring transparency, regulatory compliance, and alignment with
best practices for audit firm selection.

A statement outlining the committee’'s recommendation regarding the

appointment, reappointment, or dismissal of the external auditor, along with reasons
why the Board of Directors may reject this recommendation:

= Foliowing its review of the performance and independence of the external auditor,

the Audit Committee resoclved to recommend to the Board of Directors the
reappointment of Grant Thornton for the financial year ending 31 December 2024.
The recommendation was based on the auditor’s demonstrated expertise,
compliance with independence requirements, and the quality of service provided
during the prior audit cycle.

Dubai National Insurance
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4. An explanation of how the independence of the external auditor is maintained
when providing non-audit services to the company.

e The company maintains a strict policy that prohibits the engagement of the
external auditor for non-audit services that may pose a conflict of interest or
compromise impartiality to safequard the independence and objectivity of the
external auditor.

e Throughout 2024, the external auditor was not assigned any non-audit services.
The Audit Committee monitored this compliance and ensured that the auditor’s
role remained limited to the statutory audit of the financial statements. This
approach aligns with regulatory expectations and reinforces the independence of
the audit process.

5. Actions taken or planned by the committee to address any deficiencies or
weaknesses in the event of failures in internal control or risk management.

e Throughout the year, the Audit Committee regularly reviewed internal audit
reports and risk assessments submitted by the Internal Audit and Risk
Management functions. While no material deficiencies were identified, the
Committee ensured that all observations and process improvement areas were
followed up with appropriate corrective actions by management.

e In the event of any control or risk management failures, the Committee
maintains a structured approach for escalation, assessment, and oversight of
remediation plans. This includes monitoring implementation timelines, ensuring
accountability, and evaluating the effectiveness of measures taken.

e The Committee remains committed to strengthening internal controls and
supporting a proactive risk management culture across the organization.

6. Evidence that the committee has reviewed all internal audit reports with medium
and high risks, issued from the internal audit, to determine whether they stem from
significant violations or weaknesses in internal controls

e The Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit reports issued during the year
that were classified as medium or high risk. The Committee’s evaluation focused
on identifying whether any of the reported findings stemmed from significant
violations, control breakdowns, or systemic weaknesses.

7. Comprehensive information about the corrective action plan to address
substantial deficiencies in risk management and internal control systems.

e During the year, no substantial deficiencies were identified in the company’s
internal control or risk management systems. Nevertheless, the Audit Committee
maintains close oversight of all control-related findings and ensures that any
observations—whether minor or moderate—are addressed through timely and
effective corrective action plans.

e For each audit observation, the responsible departments are required to submit
remediation plans with defined timelines and progress updates. The Internal
Audit team monitors implementation, and the Committee receives regular
follow-ups to verify closure and effectiveness of corrective measures.

e This structured approach ensures continuous enhancement of the company’s
control environment and risk mitigation processes.

8. Documentation demonstrating that the committee has audited all transactions
made with related parties, the observations or results thereof, and the extent of
compliance with applicable laws in this regard.

e The Audit Committee reviewed all related party transactions carried out during
the financial year, based on reports submitted by management and internal
audit. Each transaction was evaluated to ensure it was conducted on an arm’s-
length basis, appropriately disclosed, and in full compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and the company’s governance framework.

e The Committee found no irregularities or compliance concerns and confirmed
that all related party dealings were properly documented, approved in
accordance with internal policies, and disclosed in the company’s financial
statements as required by international accounting standards and regulatory
requirements.

1. NOMINATION AND RENUMERATION COMMITTEE

A. Dr. Fatema Ahmed Al Otaiba, as a Head of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, acknowledges my responsibility for the committee system at the
company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

.
% ‘N )
-

N
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MEMBERS, SPECIALIZATISIN 5D FUNLIIONE. MEETINGS HELD BY THE COMMITTEE DURING THE
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2024

Mr. Sultan Ahmad Al Habtoor Vice Chairman (Non-Executive)
Attendance

2 O Eaterna Alimed Al Okaiba Board member (Independent) and Head

ot thecommities First 02/02/2024 All members attended
3 Mr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Haj Board member (Independent) Second 19/07/2024 All members attended
i T Bl amroa Director (Indepe.!ndent) a.nd Head of the Third 25/11/2024 All members attended
Committee (resigned)
3- SUPERVISION AND FOLLOW-UP COMMITTEE OF INSIDERS’
* The board of directors has appointed Dr. Fatema Ahmed Al Qtaiba as a TRANSACTION
member of the Risk Committee instead of Mr. Abdulla Fadhel Al Mazrooei who
resigned on the 15th of July 2024 for personal reasons. In 2021; the members of the Board of Directors, as stipulated in Article
(33) of SCA’S Board of Directors’ Decision no. (3/Chairman) of 2020,
Duration of the Committee: assigned the tasks and system of following up and supervising the
The duration of the Committee for the above stated composition, shall be transactions of insiders to the Audit Committee

three years and until the end of FY 2026.

Committee work system:

_— z s : . 4- OTHER COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall hold its meeting at least

once every three months or whenever necessary. Moreover, the Rapporteur I- RISK COMMITTEE
shall keep the minutes of its meetings and final copies thereof shall be sent
to the members after being approved for keeping purpose. Mohammed Abdulla Al Haj, as a Head of Risk Committee, acknowledges
my responsibility for the committee system at the company, review of its
Duties and obligations of the Committee: work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.
e Ensuring the independency of its independent members on continuous
basis.

e Preparing the Company’'s policy for bonuses, benefits, incentives and
salaries, in addition to reviewing it annually.

¢ Identifying the key competencies needed by the Company at the level of
senior executive management and staff, as well as setting the key
selection criteria.

e Preparing the Company’s human resources and training policy,
monitoring its application, and reviewing it annually.
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B. RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS, SPECIALIZATION AND » Determine and maintain an acceptable leve! of risks that the company
FUNCTIONS. may face, and ensure that the company does not exceed this level.

* Overseeing the company's risk management framework and evaluating
- “ the effectiveness of the framework and mechanisms for identifying and
controiling risks that threaten the company to identify areas of

inadequacy and adequacy.

Board member (Independent) and Head of the

L W Nha e Abuul AL HA) committee e Provide guides tc management as needed to help it improve its risk
management practices and/or mitigate specific risks, including having

2 Mr. Sultan Ahmad Al Habtoor Vice chairman - Deputy Head of the committee qualiﬁed personne' at the management level to carry out risk
management activities effectively.

5 T — D — * Ensure the availability of adequate resources and systems to manage
risks.

4 Mr. A.R. Srinivasan Chief Executive Officer of the Company

C. A STATEMENT OF THE NUMBER AND DETAILS OF
MEETINGS HELD BY THE COMMITTEE DURING THE
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR:

Duration of the Committee:
The duration of the Committee, for the above stated composition, shall be
three years and until the end of FY 2026.

¢ The committee meets once every three months or whenever the need

The Risk Committee held two meetings in 2024 attended by the members
as shown in the below table:

arises, at the invitation of its chairman or his deputy in his absence. First 15/01/2024 All members attended
* The meeting of the committee is legal in the presence of at least three

members, and the committee takes its recommendations by a majority Second 08/04/2024 Allmembers attended

vote of the attendees, and in the event of a tie, the vote of the chairman

shall prevail. Third 08/07/2024 All members attended

e The minutes of its meetings shall be kept by the Board Secretary,
provided that copies of the minutes are sent to the members of the
Committee after its approval to keep them with them.

Fourth 09/09/2024 All members attended

Duties and obligations of the Committee:

e Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies that 2. INVESTMENTCOMMITTEE
are consistent with the nature and size of the company's activities,
monitor their implementation, review and update them based on the
company's internal and external changing factors.

A. Mohammed Khalaf Al Habtoor, as a Head of Investment Committee and
Managing Director, acknowledges my responsibility for the committee

e Develop a risk management policy and establish its own system to show system at the company, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its
the risks associated with the investment and expected for each asset, effectivenesss.
which may result in potential losses if not dealt with appropriately, with g\
the identification of the risk and its degree and the strategy or alternative Y/

tools that can be relied upon to remedy it, deal with it or transfer it in the
event its occurrence.
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SPECIALIZATION AND FUNCTIONS.

.“

Mr. Mohammed Khalaf Al
Habtoor

AWE B IWE ¥ B Bhwf

1 Board Member and Head of the Committee

Board member (Independent) - Vice Chairman

2 Mr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Haj ottha Commities

3 Mr. A.R. Srinivasan Chief Executive Officer of the company

4 Ravi Ramachandran Iyer Chief Financial Officer

Duration of the Committee:

The duration of the Committee, with the above stated composition, shall be
three years and until the end of FY 2026.

Committee work system:

e The committee meets once every three months or whenever the need
arises, at the invitation of its chairman or his deputy in his absence.

e The meeting of the committee is legal in the presence of at least three members,
and the committee takes its recommendations by a majority vote of the attendees,
and in the event of a tie, the vote of the chairman shall prevail.

e The minutes of its meetings shall be kept by the Board Secretary, provided
that copies of the minutes are sent to the members of the Committee after

its approval to keep them with them.

Duties and obligations of the Committee:

e Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies that are
consistent with the nature and size of the company's activities, monitor
their implementation, review and update them based on the company's
internal and external changing factors.

4- ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT:

In accordance with corporate governance requirements, an internal assessment of
the performance of the Board of Directors, its individual members, and its
committees was conducted for the year ended 31 December 2024. The evaluation
was carried out under the supervision of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee, with support from the Board Secretary.

The results of the assessment were reviewed and discussed during the committee’s
meeting, where it was concluded that the Board and its committees continue to
function effectively, demonstrating a strong commitment to governance, oversight,
and strategic direction.

06

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

A. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY.

Risk Committee

Risk
Management

H.E. Khalaf Ahmad
Al Habtoor

Board of Director

Nominations and
Renumeration
Committee

Investment
Committee

Audit Committee

Chief Executive

Officer Internal

) Compliance
Auditor

Finance Technical

B. EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY, THEIR TITLES, DATE OF
APPOINTMENT, AND TOTAL SALARIES.

Chief Executive
Officer

2 Chief Financial Officer

Chief Technical
Officer

Total salaries
Date of and allowances

Any other cash /
in-kind bonuses,

Total bonuses paid
in 2024 (Bonuses)

Appointment (AED)

paid in 2024
(AED)

in 2024 or due in
the future

18/08/2023 1,406,659 n/a n/a
31/01/2024 684,423 n/a n/a
01/11/2023 519,269 n/a n/a
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A. ABOUT THE AUDITOR.

Messrs. Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL) is an external audit firm,
one of the world’s leading international companies, which incorporates a
number of member companies that independently provide and manage
auditing, accounting and consulting services. The firm has more than 500
offices, including 14 offices in the MENA region, and 30,000 employees
around the world to support corporate operations. Its clients in UAE
include a wide range of entities including insurance companies,
multinational ~ companies,  government institutions,  non-profit
organizations, and social, financial, and industrial development funds, in
addition to manufacturing and energy sectors.

B STATEMENT OF THE FEES AND COSTS FOR THE
" EXTERNAL AUDIT ARE AS FOLLOWS.

Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL)

Auditor Partner Name Dr. Osama El Bakry

Numbers of years served as the
Company's External Auditor

Numbers of years that the Auditor
Partner audited the Company'’s 3
financial Statements.

Fees for auditing financial

statements of 2024 (AED) 325,000/-

*There are no other services performed by an external auditor other than the
company's auditor during the year 2024.

C. The Company’s Auditor has no reservations.

A\ 4

08 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

e Internal Control Management enjoys full independence to perform its
duties. It is directly subordinate to the Board of Directors and submits its
report to the Audit Committee and the Board. The report shall be annual
and is submitted during the last week of December.

e Internal Control Management objectives, functions, and powers:

e -Ensure the company and staff compliance to the provisions of laws,
regulations and decisions in force to regulate the work of the company.

e Supervise the application of corporate governance principles.

¢ Submitting an assessment of means and procedures of the company risk
management.

e Submit suggestions and recommendations to company management
with regard to risk management.

* Management Control - includes the organization plan and relevant
means and procedures to control and ensure accuracy, improve and
raise the level of performance.

e Accounting control - all procedures designed to ensure the accuracy of

data, making sure of sound treatment of accounting treatment before
presenting these data on the senior management of the company.

A. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INTERNAL CONTROL

SYSTEM:

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the company Internal
Control System as well as review and effectiveness through the Audit
Committee of the Board, and in line with the decision of the Chairman of
Securities and Commodities Authority Decision no. (3/Chairman) of 2020
concerning Approval of Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide.

B. MANAGER OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM NAME

AND QUALIFICATIONS:

A MU 08 (TR AL £ ST SAME 43 LT

He holds a membership certificate from Association of Chartered &
Certified Accountants (ACCA) United Kingdom, and a bachelor's degree
from university of Peshawar Pakistan.
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C. MANAGER OF COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT NAME
AND QUALIFICATIONS:

Mrs. Roula Iskandar is the head of Compliance, joined the company in
2014. She holds a bachelor’s degree in law from the Lebanese University
Faculty of Law and Political and Administrative Sciences . She has more
than 17 years experience in this field

p. THE INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT DEALS
WITH ANY SIGNIFICANT PROBLEMS 1IN THE
COMPANY OR THOSE DISCLOSED IN ANNUAL
REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS.

The Internal Control Management shall inform the Audit Committee of
problems that occur, if any, and informing the joint senior management
of the company of problems address them and follow up the activation
of the proposed procedures by the Internal Control Management.
Knowing that there are no situations or problems faced the Internal
Control Management.

NUMBER OF REPORTS ISSUED BY THE INTERNAL
CONTROL DEPARTMENT TO THE COMPANY'S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Internal Control Department submitted three periodic reports to the
company'’s board of directors during the year 2024.

09 DETAILS OF VIOLATIONS COMMITTED
DURING THE FISCAL YEAR, SHOWING
THEIR CAUSES AND HOW TO ADDRESS
THEM:

10 LOCAL COMMUNITY SERVICE

As part of the company’s role in local community service, the company takes
actions in this regard, the most important of which are:

 Sponsorship at The Emirates Society for

Parents - Distributed clothes to the
elderly and needy families at The
Emirates Society for Parents during Eid Al
Fitr.

© Visit to Senior Happiness Center - Visited

the Senior Happiness Centre to distribute
Emirati breakfast to the senior Emiratis
and gather with them for a warm
meeting and conversation. Also, we took
a tour within the center to understand
how they operate and what facilities that
provide.

e Sponsorship at Emirates Down Syndrome

None, as no material violations were recorded during the fiscal year 2024.

Association - Sponsored the association
activities for full academic year under
‘Bronze Category’ and organized an
official visit to the center for a group of
DNI employees to understand the
center's work firsthand & gain deeper
insight into how they can contribute to
the well-being of individuals with Down
Syndrome

e Participated in Iftar Meal Distribution

with Dubai Police - In partnership with
Dubai Police, assigned DNI volunteers to
distribute Ramadan Iftar meals to fasting
drivers on the roads.

Sponsirship at Al Tareq Rehabilitation &
Autisms Centre - Provided for the
treatment of two children with autism at
Al Tareq Rehabilitation & Autisms Centre
as part of the scientific study.

e Beach Clean-Up Campaign - Organized a

beach clean-up initiative in partnership
with Dubai Municipality to promote
sustainability in coastal areas. By
assigning DNI volunteers to participate,
the event highlighted the importance of
responsible  waste  disposal and
showcased the vital role of our “An hour
with the Cleaning Engineer”.
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11 GENERAL INFORMATION:

A. COMPANY'S SHARE PRICE IN THE MARKET AT THE

C. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AS OF 31/12/2024.

END OF EACH MONTH DURING FISCAL YEAR 2024 Shareholde - — e
A Andivisals Percentage of Percentage of
Classificati Percentage of Shares Shiareé Shares
January 5.500 4.500 4.500
February 4.700 4.500 4.700 Local 49.0345% 50.3541% 0.0087% 99.3973%
March 5.100 4.900 4.950
Apiil 4.950 4.500 4.500 Arab 0.4086% 0.1132% 0% 0.5218%
May 4,640 3.600 3.600
ki il HoTrng S20 foreign 0.4087% 0.1113% 0% 0.5200%
July 4,600 4,100 4,600
August 4.950 4.150 4.950
Total 49.8518% 50.5786% 0.0087% 100%
September 4950 4.050 4.950
October 4.950 4.000 4.700
Noveinber 5340 4190 5340 D. SHAREHOLDERS WHO OWN 5% OR MORE OF THE
2ol >100 3900 >100 COMPANY'S CAPITAL AS OF 31/12/2024 ACCORDING

TO THE FOLLOWING TABLE.

NiGiibii P Ovihad SHares Percentage of Owned S.hares in
the Company Capital

B. A COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE STATEMENT OF THE
COMPANY'S SHARE RELATIVE TO THE GENERAL
MARKET INDEX AND THE SECTOR INDEX TO WHICH
THE COMPANY BELONGS DURING 2024

Mr. Khalaf Ahmad

Mohammed Al Habtoor Sl o e
DNIR Share Price Performance Compared to DFM Index during 2024 Messrs. Al Habtoor
6,000 — Investment (LLC) 32,649,636 28.2681%
5.000 ’-\_,_’__\W 5.000
I " .
8,000 —— 4,000 Messrs. Dubai National
Investment (LLC) 11,800,000 10.2165%
3,000 3000 e—DFMG
— DNIR
2.000 2,000
Messrs. Sultan Ahmad Al
1,000 1.000 Habtoor Investment 8,180,314 7.0825%
Group LLC
0 0.000
lan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Api-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jd-24 Aug-28 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24

DNIR Share Price Performance Compared to Financials Sector Index during 2024
4,000 6.000

- Z\,Md’m‘ -
N B J/ y1SION

— DN

1.500
2000 »
1,000 )
1,000 ON

oo :

o 0.000 \ (_\

lndl  Feb24  Mar24  Apr-2d  May2d  Jun2d  Ml24 Aug2d  Sep24  Oct24 Nov24 Dec-24 (_,/

\ NJ
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E. STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER'S DISTRIBUTION
ACCORDING TO THE “OWNERSHIP PERCENTAGE" AS
OF 31/12/2024 ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING

TABLE.
Share Ownership No. of No. of Owned Capital Stock
(Share) Shareholders Owned Shares Ratio

1 Less Than 50,000 445 8,009,728 6.935%
Between 50,000 and

2 500,000 51 7,334,283 6.350%
Between 500,000 and

3 5,000,000 9 17,464,531 15.121%

S| Sarestestan 4 82,691,458 71.594%

5,000,000

F. MENT OF ACTIONS THAT HAVE BEEN TAKEN ON
INVESTOR RELATIONSHIPS CONTROLS

e Ms. Roula Najeeb Iskandar is the Head of Investors Relations
Department; she's also the head of the legal & Compliance department
in the company. She joined the company in 2014, and she holds a
Bachelor degree in Law from the Lebanese University Faculty of Law
and Political and Administrative Sciences, and she has more than
seventeen years of experience in this field.

e ‘To communicate with Investor Relationships Department, a page for
investors’ inquiries was created in the section of investors’ relationships
on the company’s website, and allocating contacts as follows:

* Phone: +971 4 5969211
* E-mail: investor@dni.ae
* Website: https://www.dni.ae/Investor-Relations/

G. STATEMENT OF DECISIONS THAT HAVE BEEN
REVIEWED IN THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY HELD
DURING 2024 AND ACTIONS TAKEN

There are no special decisions reviewed at the General Assembly held during
2024

84 |

NAME OF THE BOARD MEETING RAPPORTEUR AND
DATE OF APPOINTMENT.

Name of the rapporteur: Hadi N. El Kadi

Appointment Date: 30/03/2021

Qualifications and experiences: Holds a Master Degree (LLM) in
International Business Law from Paris II Pantheon-Assas University, a
Master degree (MBA) in Business Administration from the American
University, Dubai, UAE , a Bachelor Degree in Law from the faculty of Law
and Political Science -Beirut-Lebanon, Certified In Governance, Risk and
Compliance (CGRC), Certificate In Governance, Risk and Compliance (CGRC)
from London School of Business and Finance LSBF, holding Certificate of
Licensing and technology Transfer from Licensing Executives Society (U.S.A.
and Canada), Inc, Compliance and Corporate Governance Courses from
Thomson Reuters. Lawyer and Legal advisor specialized in corporate law,
Joint Ventures, Mergers and Acquisitions, Hospitality, Real Estate,
Construction, General Legal Consultancies, Labor law, Corporate
Governance, Compliance, Family Trust, Negotiations and criminal law has
more than 24 years of practical experience gained in major companies and
international law firms across the Middle East where he was appointed as
President, Vice President, General Counsel for Legal Affairs, Partner, Board
Member and Former Secretary of a group of companies.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
ENCOUNTERED BY THE COMPANY IN 2024:

The most important events encountered by the company in 2024:
® The gross written premiums of 2024 is AED 469.1 Million.
® The company achieved net profit estimated of AED 53.5 Million for 2024.
e The international rating agency "A.M. Best" has affirmed the company's
financial strength rating A- (Excellent) and the Long-Term Issuer Credit
Rating to "a-" (Excellent).

During the year 2024, the company was able to obtain the following awards and
certificates of thanks:

® Best Employer Brand Awaids 2024 - GCC Leadership Awards & GCC Best
Empioyer Brand Awarads
Best Digitail CX Project - Digital Experience Award Middle East 2024
Best CX Cultuire 2024 - Customer Experience Live Awards Middle East 2024
Thumbay Healthcare - Token of Appreciation at Insurance Meet 2024

Al Tareq Rehabiiitation & Autisms Center - Token of Appreciation from on
Zayed Humanitarian Day 2024
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. STATEMENT OF THE TRANSACTIONS THAT THE
COMPANY HAS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING
THE YEAR 2024 THAT ARE EQUAL TO 5% OR MORE OF

THE COMPANY'S CAPITAL

There are no special decisions reviewed at the General Assembly held
during 2024

STATEMENT OF THE PERCENTAGE OF
NATIONALIZATION IN THE COMPANY BY THE END OF
2022, 2023, AND 2024.

The Emiratization percentage of the company at the end of the
years 2022 - 2023 - 2024 as follows:
e Emiratization percentage at the end of 2022 was 7.29% of the
total number of employees in the company.
e Emiratization percentage at the end of 2023 was 12.1%. of the
total number of employees in the company.
e Emiratization percentage at the end of 2024 was 19% of the
total number of employees in the company.
However, the company is still making efforts to attract more
young nationals to raise the level of nationals’ participation in the
insurance sector in the UAE.

- INNOVATIVE PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES

UNDERTAKEN OR DEVELOPED BY THE COMPANY IN
2024.

In accordance with our overarching plan to advance the insurance
sector through electronic means and our three-year IT strategy,
which is synchronized with business and market demands, we have
prioritized digital transformation, strengthened IT infrastructure
and security measures, and introduced portals and WhatsApp
business channels to enhance customer service and maintain a
competitive edge in the market.

Governance Shapes Our Vision and
Strengthens Our Responsibility

DUBAI NATIONAL INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CO. (PSC)

20.03.2024
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DNI Dubai National Insurance

About the Report

Ensuring a Sustainable Future

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance

J K

REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

P.S.C. (DNI) is a Public Shareholding
company established in the United
Arab Emirates (UAE) on 6th January
1992. DNI offers a variety of insurance
solutions, ranging from personal lines
to commercial lines like Property,
Liability, Accident, Engineering, Motor,
Life, Medical and includes specialized
lines of insurance to cater the market
needs in adherence to the regulatory
requirements of UAE Federal Law No. 6
of 2007.

The Integrated Report 2024
encompasses ESG performance and
aligns with the Global Reporting
Initiative’s (GRI) Universal Standards
(2021). It also details the ESG metrics
in accordance with the Dubai Financial
Market regulatory guidelines. The
report attempts to adhere to GRI's
key reporting principles of Accuracy,
Balance, completeness and Verifiability.
To maintain transparency, the reports
are available on DNI's website .

This report aligns with the
Global Reporting Initiative's
(GRI) Universal Standards
(2021) and reports on the ESG
metrics of the Dubai Financial
Market regulatory guidelines.

Reporting period and frequency

This is DNI's fourth Integrated Report,
covering the period from January 1 to
December 31, 2024, aligning with the
bank’s financial reporting year, which
follows the calendar year format.
The previous year's report, covering
2023 data for the calendar year, was
published per the DFM disclosure
timelines.

Reporting boundary

The ESG data in the report is for the
UAE operations.

Restatement of information

During this year, we have revisited
and updated our methodology of
accounting and presenting information
on certain environmental parameters
like water, energy and climate change.
The details of the change are presented
in respective sections.

Assurance

The financial data included here are
derived from independently audited
financial statements, verified by
established audit firms. The ESG
content compliance has been assured
in alignment with guidelines such as
GRI, CBUAE, DFM, and SCA. The ESG
section was reviewed by internal
stakeholders to verify its accuracy and
completeness.

Communication & Feedback

For any inquiries, remarks, feedback
and  suggestion regarding  this
document, please contact the Investor
Relationship Department using the
details below:

Email: investor@dni.ae
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Key ESG Highlights

Environment >

i

Total Energy Consumption:

15,604.28 Gj

Reduction in Energy Intensity

per employee (since 2023):

13.45%

Total GHG Emissions:

1,747.25 MT CO2e

Reduction in Emissions Intensity

per employee (since 2023):

25%

Water Consumption:

13,293.83 m?

Waste Generated:

640 m?3

Social >

%,

.

Total Workforce:

156 employees

(reflecting a 10.65% increase since 2023)

Retention rate
post parental leave

100%

Gender Diversity:

59% 47%

female amongst women in total

new hires workforce

Employee Turnover:

23%

Training and Development:

Total Training Hours : Average trainin
1:0.94 9 ge training

median 1’5 31 hours per Employee
male-to-female h O u rs 9 R 81 h 0 u rs

compensation ratio

Emiratization Rate:

19% UAE Nationals

Governance >

Board Representation:
The board is composed of

7 members

all serving in a non-executive capacity.

Among them, 4 are independent
members, and there is

1 female

representative.

Incidents of Corruption:

Zero
instances
reported

Customer Privacy: Local Procurement:

Zero 95% local
breaches suppliers
reported

Integrated Report 2024 | 93



DNI

Dubai National Insurance

Message from CEO

Our Emiratization efforts

go beyond compliance with
regulatory directives; they
are a strategic commitment
to nurturing local talent.

By 2026, we aim to have
Emiratis comprise 30% of
our total workforce, guided
by a structured development
plan that ensures meaningful
iIntegration, career growth,
and leadership opportunities.

A R Srinivasan
Chief Executive Officer

94 |

Dear Stakeholders,

| am pleased to share the next chapter
of our sustainability journey, which
reflects our progress and our resolute
commitment to responsible business
practices.

At DNI, sustainability is more than a
regulatory requirement-it is a guiding
principle that shapes how we operate,
serve our customers, and contribute to
climate resilience, and social well-being
of the communities we engage with.

Over the last few years, we have prioritized energy
efficiency, resource conservation, and digital
transformationascore componentsof ouroperational
sustainability. Our move to a new modernized office
space in 2023 marked significant progress in our
journey of operational sustainability with integration
of green features, energy-efficient systems, and
responsible waste management practices.

Our goal of becoming a paperless organization
continues to gain momentum. Through digital
platforms, electronic communication, and automated
transactions, we have significantly reduced paper
usage. This was achieved through collaboration
with insurers and government bodies, to proactively
establish a digital payment mechanism, ensuring a
seamless transition while preventing unnecessary
paper consumption.

Recent extreme weather events in the MENA region,
including unprecedented rainfall and flooding, have
highlighted the urgent need for climate adaptation
and risk mitigation. At DNI, we are integrating climate
risk considerations into our underwriting policies and
risk management framework, ensuring alignment
with global best practices. We work closely with our

reinsurers to structure portfolios that mitigate peak
exposures and actively educate our customers on
risk preparedness and loss prevention strategies. We
provide structured advisory and early warning to help
our customers be prepared and take timely action.
Our overall approach to climate risk mitigation is
rooted in the saying “prevention is better than cure”.

Diversity and inclusion are fundamental to our
culture. As a company operating in one of the most
multicultural business hubs, DNI embraces a work
environment that values all employees, regardless
of nationality, background, or role within the
organization. Our Emiratization efforts go beyond
compliance with regulatory directives; they are a
strategic commitment to nurturing local talent. By
2026, we aim to have Emiratis comprise 30% of our
total workforce, guided by a structured development
plan that ensures meaningful integration, career
growth, and leadership opportunities.

As a company handling sensitive medical and
insurance data, we recognize the critical responsibility
of ensuring robust data security and governance.
DNI undergoes stringent audits and adheres to the
highest industry standards, ensuring that our systems
remain resilient against increasing cyber threats and
data breaches.

With evolving technology, particularly Artificial
Intelligence (Al), we see immense opportunities to
enhance customer service, operational efficiency,
and risk management. In 2025, we plan to accelerate
Al adoption for customer excellence, ensuring that
our approach is ethical, responsible, and continues to
protect human rights.

Over the past few years, sustainability awareness has
deepened, shaping our ongoing journey of action
and learning. We welcome stakeholder insights
and feedback to further refine and strengthen our
sustainability initiatives.

Sincerely Yours,
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About DNI

Dubai National Insurance & Reinsurance P.S.C.

is a Public Shareholding company governed

by Federal Law 6 of 2007 in the United Arab
h Emirates. We are headquartered in Dubai, and
we also maintain a branch in Abu Dhabi.

Established in 1991, we were among the first
insurers listed on the Dubai Financial Market,
backed by prominent national shareholders who
recognized our potential. Our cautious approach
to coverage has led to steady growth in premium
volume and net insurance returns. A readiness
to adopt fresh ideas and address client needs
has enabled us to carve out a distinct presence
in a competitive market.

We offer a wide range of insurance solutions
across Motor, Medical, Travel, Home, and
commercial lines, including Group Medical,
Group Life, Engineering, Marine, Property,
and Liability. Our expert team of insurance
and reinsurance professionals ensure access
to competitive policies and seamless claims
services, strengthening our relationships with
clients.

With over three decades of experience in the UAE
insurance industry, our professionals anticipate
client needs and provide tailored solutions. A
commitment to service excellence has positioned
us as a trusted partner for individuals and
businesses. Customer experience, innovation,
financial stability, and value creation are at the
core of our strategy. We have also expanded
our distribution channels and formed strategic

. partnerships to drive underwriting growth.
We offer a wide range

of insurance solutions At DNI, protecting what matters most to
across Motor, Medical, stakeholders is our priority. We focus on
Travel, Home, and delivering value, building long-term alliances and
commercial lines, fostering a legacy rooted in trust, confidence,
including Group and a dedication to serve the communities we
Medical, Group Life, stand alongside .

Engineering, Marine,

: R e SR 2 e i Property, and Liability.

96 | Integrated Report 2024 | 97



DNI

98 |

Vision

Our vision is to provide innovative and best
value insurance products and services,
tailored to meet the ever-changing financial
risk exposures faced by our clients, while

being a market-focused and people-centered
organization that ensures a safe environment.

Mission

Our mission is to be counted among the
foremost insurance providers in the region,
grounded in trust-driven partnerships that
bring mutual value. We rely on a highly
competent and satisfied workforce to enhance
offerings for our customers and secure fair
returns for our shareholders.

Our Values

Dubai National Insurance

The values of DNI are based on beliefs and are shared among employees, business partners and stakeholders

in every aspect.

S E C
Security Excellence Customer

of your family in everything Service
members and we do is a key factor
your assets to our success

Our Products

=3

MOTOR

Insurance

ENGINEERING

Insurance

€

PEDAL CYCLE

Insurance

LIABILITY

Insurance

PROPERTY

Insurance

U

your insurance

R E

Understanding Reliable Efficient
insurance and hassle-free
partner claims settlement

needs

i

MARINE

Insurance

©)

MEDICAL

Insurance

2

GENERAL
ACCIDENT

Insurance

050
CQ’J
GROUP LIFE

& PERSONAL
ACCIDENT

Insurance

Insurance
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Our Business
Partners

In our extensive network, we collaborate with a diverse range of business associates, including Brokers,
Aggregators, Reinsurers, Third-party administrators (TPAs), and Healthcare providers etc. These partners are
integral to our ecosystem, allowing us to deliver robust and reliable services that cater to the diverse needs of

our clients.

@ Swiss Re
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Company
Highlights

BIO&

YEARS

Composite insurer
with a growing
market presence

0/@e)
C@>

Customer centric
approach

Partnered with
A Rated Global
reinsurers

Rated ‘A’ Excellent by
AM Best's assessment
of balance sheet
strength and

strong operating
performance, business
profile and enterprise
risk management.

:nuﬂﬂuy

Financial strengths
supported by good
solvency ratio (315%)
and high liquidity

Investment in
innovation and

technology
LRQA (%
CERTIFIED
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ISO 9001:2015
Certification from
Lloyd’s Register
Management
Systems (LRQA)

& DFM
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One of the first
Insurance Company
to be listed in Dubai
Financial Market
(DFM)

Awards and
Achievements

Best Employer
Brand Awards 2024
GCC Leadership
Awards & GCC

Best Employer Brand
Awards

Best Digital CX
Project

Digital Experience
Award Middle
East 2024

Best CX

Culture 2024
Customer Experience
Live Awards

Middle East 2024

Thumbay
Healthcare Token
of Appreciation
Insurance Meet 2024
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Approach to ESG
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Our View on
Sustainability

At DNI, sustainability is at the heart of our pledge
to protect what matters. It is not just a goal; it
is a mission. We adopt responsible strategies to
guard the interests of our employees, customers,
shareholders, and communities. This approach
establishes the foundation for a resilient organization
that can respond to future challenges. It embodies
our overarching vision, founded on trust, ethical
behavior, and balanced growth for mutual benefit.

Sustainability
Objectives

“(Q Environmental
/qa% We aim to reduce our ecological

N footprint while responding to
stakeholder priorities by adopting
new, eco-friendly measures in
our insurance offerings and daily
operations.

Social

[@;ﬂ We strive to maintain a safe,

“« supportive environment for
employees as a key part of
sustainable growth. Our market-
driven and customer-focused
approach promotes community
welfare and protects all stakeholders.

Governance

We are built on a foundation

of transparency, openness, and
accountability. We believe that this
philosophy is not just a guiding
principle, but a commitment to our
stakeholders. It ensures our long-
term success and fosters trust among
those we serve.
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Materiality Assessment

We  build our ESG approach on internationally
recognised sustainability guidelines and frameworks

The GRI indicators and DFM metrics were utilized to ascertain critical items to monitor and disclose on these topics to
ensure that disclosure on these topics remains relevant for our stakeholders.

matrix helped us identify eleven prioritised sustainability
areas of focus. We integrate these topics within our ESG

like the Global Reporting Initiatives. At the same
time, we also adhere to local directives and guidelines
provided by institutions such as DFM, SCA, and CBUAE.
This approach helps us meet regional requirements
while keeping a perspective of global best practices.
This balanced approach builds trust with local
stakeholders, supports delivering ethical growth,
and confirms our pledge to uphold responsible and
transparent operations.

To identify our focus ESG topics, we carefully review
and list the potential material topics within the
environmental, social, and governance areas. To
understand the stakeholder perspective, we reached
out to a range of internal stakeholders to gather
feedback on the impact of identified topics on DNI's
performance and the external world regarding
environment, society and economic wellbeing. While
conducting the engagement with these stakeholders,
we gathered feedback based on the double materiality
concept of identifying the relevant topics. The
feedback was analysed to result in an ESG matrix. This

framework.

Identify

The Key Material
Topics

Engage
With
stakeholders
through a survey

Analyze and
Validate
By plotting the
materiality
matrix based on
the response of
the survey
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Material Topics

Corresponding GRI Disclosure

Corresponding DFM Disclosure

Economic Performance

GRI 201 - Economic Performance

NA

Customer Privacy and
Data Security

GRI 418 - Customer Privacy

G6. Data Security

Ethical Business Conduct

GRI 205 - Anti Corruption

G1. Board Diversity
G2. Board Independence
G5. Ethics and Anti-Corruption

Digitalization

NA

NA

Employment Practices

GRI 401 - Employment
GRI 404 - Training & Education
GRI 405 - Diversity & Equal Opportunity

S3. Breakdown with Staff
S4. Employee Turnover and New Hires
S5. Gender Diversity and Equality

Equal Opportunity:
Diversity & Inclusion

GRI 405 - Diversity & Equal Opportunity

S5. Gender Diversity and Equality

Environmental Impact

GRI 302 - Energy
GRI 303 - Water
GRI 305 - Emissions
GRI 306 - Waste

E1. GHG Emissions
E2. Emissions Intensity
E3. Energy Usage
E4. Energy Intensity
ES5. Energy Mix
E6. Water and Effluents
E7. Waste
E8. Environmental Management
E9. Climate Risk Management and
Oversight
E10. Biodiversity

Emiratization

GRI 202 - Market Presence

S3. Breakdown with Staff

Community

GRI 413 - Local Communities

S8. Community Engagement

Talent Attraction
and Development

GRI 404 - Training & Education

S4. Employee Turnover and New Hires

Sustainable Supply Chain

GRI 204 - Procurement Practices
GRI 414 - Supplier Social Assessment

G4. Supply Chain Management

Table 1: Material Topics mapping with GRI & DFM
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Aligning our Material Topics with the
Sustainable Development Goals

At DNI, we recognize that sustainable development is
a global commitment to ensuring that businesses and
communities thrive while safeguarding our shared
future. A key framework guiding this commitment is the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs),
which offer a roadmap for addressing today's most
pressing challenges—from poverty alleviation to climate
action. Although these goals may seem specialized or
technical at first glance, they represent fundamental
principles that can be integrated into everyday business

and social practices, ultimately benefiting individuals,
families, and societies at large. To ensure we are actively
contributing to these global targets, we have conducted
a mapping exercise that aligns our material topics
with specific SDGs, enabling us to track our impact
effectively. By articulating our strategies in this report
and holding ourselves accountable to these targets,
we affirm that sustainability is not just a concept but a
practical, ongoing commitment to our stakeholders and
the world we share.

Material Topic

Relevant SDGs

Economic Performance

Customer Privacy and Data Security

8 Giowsom

SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth ﬁ/"
16 5.

SDG 16: Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions !i

Ethical Business Conduct

16 mumno
STROG ISTTUTRNS

SDG 16: Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions z_

Digitalization

SDG 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure &

[ Jritecte]
ANDIFRASTRUCTURE

Employment Practices

SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth ,/‘

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

Equal Opportunity: Diversity and
Inclusion

GENDER

SDG 5: Gender Equa“ty 5Emuulv 10 ?‘ni%’ms
SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities 6

@,

SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production AGFBITTON

12 Gienn 13 v

Sustainable Supply Chain

SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production (e\@)
SDG 13: Climate Action

SDG 17: Partnerships for the Goals

17 Pemezsues
FORTHEGOALS

&

Table 2: Material Topics Mapped to UNSDGs
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Envi [
nvirenmental impact SDG 13: Climate Action Co g &
SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth 8 oo, [ 10 i
Emiratizati mi
miratization SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities ﬁ/‘
[ ittt
Community SDG 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities Eé
HEEE
Talent Attraction and Development SDG 4: Quality Education ‘ Emm' me
P SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth !ﬂl |||
I EES
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Stakeholder
Engagement

Our primary stakeholders include customers, employees,
the board, shareholders, rating agencies, government
entities, business partners, and local communities.
Our stakeholders’ involvement is integral to our ESG
journey. Their perspectives and priorities guide our
decision-making processes. We intend to broaden our
dialogue with internal and external stakeholders to have
a more diverse perspective aimed at advancing our
sustainability efforts.

Apart from the structured feedback planned specifically
for ESG matrix development, we, as a part of our business
activities, have several other methods of engaging with
stakeholder and gathering their feedback. These include
formal methods such as annual stakeholder meetings
and surveys, as well as informal methods like regular
communication with our employees and customers. The
stakeholders also have many channels to provide direct
feedback or raise concerns at any time. This feedback
is regularly considered when designing new initiatives,
business strategies, process improvements, and policy
upgrades.

Our Outlook

During the year, we focused on tracking and monitoring
our progress on the material topics identified in 2023.
We also continued to observe our performance against
regulatory requirements. In the coming year, we will
intensify and broaden the horizon of our ESG initiatives
andperformance. Thematerialityassessment performed
in 2023 has continued to provide us with direction in
2024. We will revisit our materiality assessment and, if
needed, realign our ESG Strategy from 2025 onwards.

Customers

- Training &

Development

- Company Events &

Announcements

- Performance

Appraisals

- HR Portal

Shareholders
and Board
Members

- Interactions related

to business
coordination and
development

Government
and Regulators

- Yearly interaction
during rating review

- Credit Rating
Methodology updates

- Online Review

- Marketing Material
- Contact Center

- WhatsApp

- Complaint/
Suggestions Platform

R

¢ Employees

- Annual General
Meetings

- Corporate Regulatory
Disclosure

- Regular
Communication

A
Hi

e Business
Partners

- Audits

- Circulars, decree and
announcements

® . Comunication

through reporting
requirements and
meetings

- Meeting and

Workshops

e

&

® Rating
Agencies

Figure 2: Selected Stakeholder Engagement Modes
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Economic Value Creation

108 |

DNI is committed to
creating sustained
economic value for
stakeholders through
responsible financial
management,
innovative

insurance solutions,
employment,

and procurement
practices that
support local
economic
development.

DNI, the leading insurance company in the UAE,
influences and drives value creation for various
economic stakeholders. It is committed to creating
sustained economic value for stakeholders through
responsible  financial management, innovative
insurance solutions, employment, and procurement
practices that support local economic development.

Financial
Performance and
Sustainable Growth

Over the years, we have demonstrated strong financial
performance (refer to the financial statement for
numbers), reflecting our ability to adapt to evolving
market conditions and deliver value to shareholders,
policyholders, and employees. Our prudent risk
management practices and diversified investment
portfolio enable us to maintain a strong capital
position, ensuring the company’s ability to fulfill its
commitments to shareholders.

Supporting Businesses Deliver Value

As an insurance provider, we play a crucial role in
safeguarding individuals and businesses from financial
uncertainties. Through innovative insurance solutions,
we enhance the financial resilience and inclusion of
businesses and individuals. Through our products and
services, we have been supporting businesses across
the UAE and in international markets to grow and
contribute positively to the country’s GDP.

We also prioritize local supplier engagement by
sourcing goods and services from regional businesses,
strengthening local economies and fostering long-
term partnerships. By supporting small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) and socially responsible suppliers,
we contribute to sustainable business ecosystems
that align with our values.
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Investing in People and Community

We are invested in the well-being and success of our people. We B o Lot Soe e e
have the right policies and make financial investment in their
wellbeing through competitive compensation structures and
professional development programs. Additionally, we prioritize local
employment by actively recruiting talent from the communities
where we operate, contributing to regional economic development.
Our financial contribution to community building activities has been
consistent and aimed at supporting initiatives in a sustained manner

to create lasting impacts.
—

Importance of proc urement

Sustainable Procurement

Procurement at DNI is a dynamic process where deliberate planning
and conscientious choices shape meaningful alliances across our = Al ‘ »nday, Sept
supply chain. This begins with a well-defined policy framework that -
standardizes every step of the process—from supplier onboarding
to contract approvals and renewals—ensuring transparency and
consistency. DNI's emphasis on thorough supplier evaluations is key
to this process. By using a quantitative vendor evaluation matrix that
weighs technical expertise, financial stability, and long-term reliability,
the company ensures a steady flow of high-quality goods and services.
At the same time, it prioritizes social responsibility by favouring local
and woman-owned businesses, effectively combining commercial
goals with community development. DNI consistently ensures that the
majority of its suppliers are local suppliers. The supplier composition
backs this over years. In 2023, 40 of the 43 suppliers were local,
representing 93%. By 2024, that figure rose to 63 out of 66, or 95%,
marking an increase in local engagement. The financial value of local
procurement amounts to AED 639,225.12 compared to AED 613,201.67
procured globally. The addition of 22 new UAE suppliers, while only
one supplier was chosen from outside UAE during the reporting year,

reflecting the expansion of local suppliers.

Year Total Number of Suppliers Number of Local Suppliers | Percentage of local Suppliers

2022 55 55 100%

2023 43 40 93% —
2024 66 63 95%

Table 3: Number & Percentage of Local Suppliers

By weaving ESG considerations into every procurement decision, DNI continues to set a clear example of how responsible
sourcing can drive both business success and broader societal benefits. It will further continue to revisit and evolve its
practices of supplier engagement to drive sustainability in the supply chain.

SO ‘
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DNI's governance philosophy is a unique blend
of ethical responsibility and strict adherence to
laws and regulations. This distinctive foundation
not only preserves transparency and risk
management but also fosters trust among
investors and elevates financial performance.
Our commitment to responsible practices,
grounded in clarity of roles and decision-
making, is a key driver of our sustained success
and reinforces integrity as a core value.

Shareholding
and Governance
Structure

DNI's governance framework, meticulously built
on transparency, accountability, and strategic
oversight, is a reflection of our commitment to
long-term value creation for all stakeholders.
This robust structure ensures that customers
and clients’ investments are safe, instilling
a sense of security and confidence in our
operations.

Our ownership structure is a representation
of our strong domestic engagement, with
99.38% of shares held by national shareholders.
This local ownership significantly influences
the company’'s strategic direction. Foreign
ownership accounts for 0.62%, while GCC
nationals do not have any shares.

DNI's Board, a well-structured team of seven
members, including four independent directors
and three non-independent directors, one of
whom is a female director, is a testament to
our commitment to diversity and balanced
decision-making. Their diverse expertise and
balanced decision-making capabilities reassure
stakeholders of our commitment to effective
governance.
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The Board is supported by four specialised
committees: the audit committee, the nomination
and remuneration committee, the risk committee,
and the investment committee. Each is dedicated to
enhancing governance oversight. DNI's policies and
procedures provide a system for effective and ethical
governance. Key aspects covered are Anti-money
Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism,
a code of conduct, a whistleblower policy, and Quality
Management System Policies.

Fair and Competitive
Remuneration

DNI is committed to fostering a transparent, equitable,
and performance-driven remuneration framework
that aligns with industry best practices and corporate
governance principles. Our approach ensures that
compensation is structured to attract, retain, and
motivate talent while maintaining internal fairness and
financial sustainability.

DNI's remuneration framework is built on key principles
that ensure fairness and competitiveness. Market
benchmarking is conducted to align salaries with
industry standards and competitor practices, ensuring
that compensation remains competitive. A candidate’s
experience, skill, knowledge and competency are the
guiding factors in determining a fair fixed base salary,
while internal parity is maintained to uphold fairness
and consistency across leadership teams and job levels.
Compensation packages are structured within DNI's
financial capacity, ensuring a balance between business
needs and responsible cost management. Additionally,
performance-based incentives and bonuses are linked
to individual achievements and business performance,
fostering a results-driven culture. All remuneration
practices strictly adhere to UAE labor laws and corporate
governance requirements, reinforcing our commitment
to regulatory compliance.

For all staff, DNI offers a structured remuneration
package combining a fixed salary with a variable
component tied to individual and company performance.
In addition to competitive salaries, employees receive a
range of benefits, including Air fare Allowance, Medical
Insurance, Group Life Insurance, and applicable Social
Security benefits.
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Through this approach, DNI ensures that remuneration
policies remain competitive, fair, and aligned with both
business objectives and employee well-being, fostering
a high-performance and responsible corporate culture.

Whistleblower
Policy: Promoting
Transparency

Knowledge of potential threats, misconduct, and risks
is essential to take action. DNI's Whistleblower Policy
illustrates our commitment to a clear and ethical
workplace. Employees are strongly encouraged to
report improper practices. We provide multiple secure
reporting channels—electronic forms, a confidential
email, and a dedicated hotline—while safeguarding
reporters from intimidation or retaliation.

Anti-Corruption

DNI's stance on corruption is unequivocal- we have zero
tolerance for such practices.

Zero instances of corruption were reported during the
year.

Anti-Money Laundering/Countering
Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT)

We are in the business to provide support and protect
businesses and people at critical times. Therefore, our
ethical and moral duty is to ensure that our systems are
free of any possible acts that can jeopardise our ability to
serve. Given this, we have put in place a well-structured
Anti-Money Laundering/Combating the Financing
of Terrorism (AML/CFT) framework. It is integral to
our ongoing commitment to the highest ethical and
compliance standards. We continuously strengthen this
system.

The Board of Directors, senior management, and
employees jointly work to reinforce our resolve to
protect insurance products from illicit exploitation.
Determined to set an industry-leading example in the
UAE’s insurance sector, our policy permeates every level
of the organization.

Systematic Risk
Management

DNI maintains that an effective and fully integrated
risk management framework is essential for consistent
performance and long-term profitability. This approach
rests on a risk-aware culture at every level, ensuring
proper oversight of strategic objectives. We accept risk
only within well-defined parameters, avoid or reduce
exposures beyond our tolerance, diversify revenue
streams, and preserve strong financial positions to
honour commitments. We aim to seek balanced risks
that yield healthy returns over time.

Our risk appetite defines the level and nature of risks we
consider acceptable while pursuing strategic objectives.
These parameters guide management in capital
deployment, operational boundaries, and investment

choices. We establish qualitative and quantitative
targets for earnings, liquidity, regulatory adherence,
and reputational factors. We strive to preserve financial
strength through this balance without stifling growth
opportunities.

Our Risk Culture

We promote an understanding of risk responsibilities
across the workforce. Leaders encourage open dialogue
on potential threats and opportunities. This shared
commitment helps embed Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) into day-to-day activities and overall decision
processes, ensuring a cohesive approach to risk. The ERM
framework facilitates identifying, assessing, managing,
monitoring, and reporting key risk categories affecting
DNI. Risks are prioritized based on their materiality,
considering both the probability of occurrence and their
potential impact on the balance sheet and capital.
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Strengthening
Infrastructure for

Digital

16 |

Transformation

The initial phase
focuses on
launching state-of-
the-art B2B and B2C
portals to broaden
market reach

and strengthen
customer
engagement.

Digital transformation anchors DNI's three-
year strategy, driving resilience, efficiency, and
sustainability to meet business needs and market
expectations. Committed to enhancing the
experience of customers, partners, and employees,
DNIis evolvingits systems and processes to optimize
daily operations, ensure long-term success, and
promote responsible resource management.

DNI's digital strategy unfolds across a structured
three-year roadmap, starting with a robust
foundation of core technology, infrastructure,
application distribution, and security. The initial
phase focuses on launching state-of-the-art B2B and
B2C portals to broaden market reach and strengthen
customer engagement. By adopting cutting-edge
tools—DNI accelerates software creation without
compromising quality. Robust data layers and APIs
further enable seamless system integration and
sharper organizational decision-making.

In the second phase, DNI transitions critical
systems to the cloud, boosting reliability, enhancing
disaster recovery, and optimizing resource use in
an eco-friendly manner. The final phase harnesses
advanced technologies like artificial intelligence (Al)
and robotic process automation (RPA) to streamline
repetitive tasks, empowering employees to focus
on high-impact initiatives. Over the next year, DNI
will prioritize accelerating Al-driven solutions as a
cornerstone of its IT strategy.

By pairing innovative technologies with a resilient
IT infrastructure and a skilled team, DNI ensures
uninterrupted service, protects sensitive data, and
positions itself as a leader in modern insurance
technology.
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Our steps aimed at digital transformation includes:
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Process technology-driven layer for collaboration services in B2B
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Enhancing Customer Engagement
with Digital Services

To serve its diverse portfolio—spanning Health, Motor,
Traveland commerciallines—DNIhas developedadvanced
B2B and B2C digital portals. These platforms evolve
continuously based on user feedback, delivering intuitive
navigation and rich, informative content. By prioritizing
user-friendly design, DNI empowers policyholders to
effortlessly manage policies, access key information, and
seek support, reflecting its commitment to convenient,
reliable, and digital-first services.

In 2023, DNI launched a fully digital motor insurance
platform, streamlining operations and slashing paper
consumption. By 2024, this platform had grown to
include automated data capture for seamless policy
applications, a WhatsApp channel for customer support,
and OCR driven document validation. These innovations
elevate the customer experience while advancing
sustainability through digitalization.

Facilitating Seamless Digital
Experiences for Business Partners

DNI's B2B portal exemplifies its dedication to digital
innovation, tailored to the needs of clients, distributors,
and underwriters. With seamless chat functionality and
intuitive navigation, the portal enables efficient query
resolution and transaction management across diverse
products and services. Looking forward, DNI plans to

introduce a Data Layer and API platform to consolidate
and securely share data, enhancing operational
efficiency for business partners. Integration of third-
party services, such as vehicle evaluation systems,
further boosts processing accuracy and speed.

Driving Sustainability Through
Paperless Operations

Committed to environmental responsibility, DNI is
minimizing paper use by adopting digital signatures and
automated workflows. These advancements drastically
reduce the reliance on printed documents, enabling
seamless transactions with minimal paperwork.
Real-time notifications and digital tracking enhance
operational efficiency, cutting costs and environmental
impact alike. This shift to paperless processes aligns
with DNI's broader sustainability goals and ongoing
innovation efforts.

Measuring Progress in Digital
Transformation

DNI  tracks its digital transformation with key
performance indicators (KPIs) centered on system
reliability, user satisfaction, data security, and
environmental impact. Regular evaluations ensure
alignment with the company's core objectives—
efficiency, ethics, and sustainability—enabling
continuous refinement and strategic adjustments as
needed.

KPIs that helped track our performance were:

Product Retention and

extension via - expansion of Rolrlmi(')cinasi:/ilstal L Cross-selling
digital Customer Base
channels
Omni Channel To be in
[ ] - - compliance
SEAFIE Experience with regulatory
guidelines
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Customer Privacy and
Data Security

As a leading player in the insurance sector, DNI handles
sensitive customer data with the utmost responsibility.
While digital transformation enhances both customer
experience and operational efficiency, it also brings
heightened risks related to data security and privacy.
Acknowledging these evolving challenges, DNI
proactively implements robust measures to safeguard

customer information against cyber threats and data
breaches.

Over the past few years, DNI has integrated advanced
security systems, processes, and tools to strengthen
its data protection framework. The company strictly
adheres to the Personal Data Protection Law established
by the Signal Intelligence Agency (SIA), ensuring
full compliance with regulatory standards. In 2024,
DNI  successfully achieved zero privacy breaches,
underscoring the effectiveness of its comprehensive
data security strategies.

Type of Breach 2022 2023 2024
Complaints from external parties
. 0 0 0
(substantiated)
Complaints from regulatory bodies 0 0 0
Identified leaks, thefts, or data losses 0 0 0

Table 4: Privacy Breaches

Robust Disaster
Recovery System

DNI maintains two data centers, with one designated as
an immediate disaster recovery site. This setup ensures
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that in the event of a primary system failure, operations
can resume within ten minutes, minimizing disruptions
for clients and partners. To further enhance resilience,
DNI has also implemented a fully managed, cloud-based
disaster recovery system, reinforcing its ability to deliver
uninterrupted service.

Comprehensive Data
Security Systems

Data security remains a top priority for DNI. By deploying
advanced firewalls, cutting-edge security tools and
technologies, and comprehensive environmental
monitoring systems, the company mitigates both
cyber and physical security risks. A multi-tiered backup
strategy—including daily tape backups, remote archival
storage, and structured recovery intervals—ensures
rapid data restoration in the event of cyber incidents or
hardware failures.

Guarding Health
Information with
ADHICS Alignment

The Abu Dhabi Health Information Cyber Security
(ADHICS) certification is a mandatory requirement
for all healthcare entities in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi
mandated by Department of Health (DoH) to ensure
all entities maintain a robust cybersecurity framework.
DNI achieved its initial ADHICS certification in 2022
followed by successful completion of surveillance audits
in 2023 and 2024 which was administered by a 3rd party
certification entity appointed by DoH. The audit scope

was to assess DNI's compliance to cybersecurity control
framework, implementation of policies and procedures.
This achievement reflects the strength of DNI's
information security system, which is built on strong
governance and structured data management policies.

Audits and
Assessments

DNI  regularly conducts independent third-party
audits, vulnerability assessments, and penetration
testing to proactively identify, assess, and remediate
security vulnerabilities. Continuous updates to security
assessments ensure evolving threats are swiftly
identified and mitigated.

Cybersecurity
Awareness

DNI prioritizes ongoing cybersecurity awareness across
its workforce. All employees are required to complete
mandatory online cybersecurity training, which
includes tailored content on phishing, email security,
and educational videos to reinforce key cybersecurity
principles.

24/7 Cybersecurity
Monitoring (SOC)

DNI has engaged a specialized third-party security
provider to serve as its Security Operations Center
(SOC). This partnership ensures continuous, round-the-
clock monitoring of DNI's systems, enabling the timely
detection and prevention of potential cyberattacks to
ensure seamless business operations.

Customer Awareness

To help customers protect themselves from cyber
threats and recognize fraudulent activities, DNI regularly
publishes cybersecurity awareness content on social
media platforms such as Instagram and LinkedIn. These
educational initiatives empower customers to stay
informed and vigilant online.
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Community Engagement
o DO P— e

. DNI understands the interconnectedness of
economic, social, and environmental well-being.
We are committed to creating a meaningful and
lasting impact beyond our core operations.

Our initiatives are driven by a deep sense
of responsibility to contribute positively to
society. We strive to align business success with
overall societal progress by actively supporting
community well-being. We encourage
employees to participate and contribute to the
activities of social well-being.

We forge partnerships and collaborations for
specific community initiatives. Two years ago,
we began partnering with Takalam, a renowned
Emirati startup specializing in mental health
support. At same time, DNI also initiated
collaboration with Wellx, the region’s first
wellness-backed insurance platform designed to
promote an active lifestyle. These partnerships
and collaborations continue to exist and help us
deliver and strengthen our relationships with
the communities.
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Our initiatives Social responsibility and
are driven by a community engagement

are integral to our

deep sense of :
business values.

responsibility
to contribute
positively to
society.
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Spreading Compassion

Ramadan Iftar Meal Distribution with Dubai Police

Overview

During the holy month of Ramadan, DNI
implemented an Iftar Meal Distribution initiative
to ensure that individuals who face financial
challenges have access to a meal at sunset. This
program not only meets a basic need-offering
food to those who might otherwise go hungry-—
but also fosters a stronger sense of empathy and
social responsibility within our organization and
the broader community.

Objectives

- Provide nourishing meals to individuals in
need.

- Encourage collective action and solidarity
among volunteers.

- Reinforce social responsibility as a core
corporate value.

Our Actions

- DNI, in partnership with Dubai Police,
distributed iftar meal boxes to drivers at the
Trade Center roundabout during Ramadan,
providing support to the community during
iftar.

- This initiative, co-branded with Dubai Police,
reflects DNI's commitment to community
engagement and social responsibility,
ensuring a positive impact during the holy
month of Ramadan.

Impact

This initiative significantly benefited
those who needed it most, providing
sustenance during the fasting period. It
also helped create a sense of unity, not
just among beneficiaries but among
employees who took part. By shining a
light on the importance of giving back,
the program strengthened community
ties and underscored our commitment
to social welfare.

Looking Ahead

Building on this success, DNI plans to:

Expand Reach
Broaden meal coverage to more
areas.

Enhance Logistics
Refine planning and delivery
methods for greater efficiency.

Deepen Partnerships

Work more closely with local
businesses, government initiatives
and community organizations.

Adopt Sustainable Practices
Incorporate environmentally
responsible measures to reduce
waste and minimize the initiative's
ecological footprint.
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Fostering Inclusion

Emirates Down Syndrome Centre

T ————_
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Overview

DNI organized a visit to the Emirates Down
Syndrome Centre to raise awareness of Down
syndrome, encourage employee engagement, and
promote inclusive opportunities. By witnessing the
centre’'s work firsthand, employees gained deeper
insight into how they can contribute to the well-
being of individuals with Down syndrome.

Objectives

- Raise awareness and understanding of Down
syndrome among employees.

- Inspire a culture of empathy, inclusion, and
social responsibility within the organization.

- Explore avenues for ongoing support, including
volunteering and donations.

Key Activities

- Volunteers received an overview of the center’s
facilities, met with staff, and engaged with its
programs.

- Volunteers interacted with children at the
center, creating a sense of inclusion and
belonging.

- Team members discussed ways to offer
continued support through volunteering,
in-kind contributions, and corporate
partnerships.

- The visit served as a platform to encourage
ongoing awareness and dialogue, emphasizing
everyone's role in building a more inclusive
community.

Impact

Developed a greater sense of empathy
and a better understanding of the day-
to-day challenges faced by individuals
with Down syndrome. The visit also
opened the door to future collaboration,
including  possible  donations  and
volunteer programs—cementing DNI's
commitment to social responsibility.

Looking Ahead

Building on the positive momentum
from this visit, DNI plans to:

Organize regular volunteer
opportunities to support the centre’s
needs.

Launch internal campaigns to raise
awareness about Down syndrome.

Strengthen ties with the centre
through fundraising and resource-
sharing.

Create inclusive workplace practices
that support individuals with different
abilities.
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Preserving Coastlines

Beach Clean-Up Initiative with Dubai Municipality

Overview
Impact

This clean-up produced immediate
benefits: a visibly cleaner beach, reduced
pollution, and a heightened sense of
community among participants. It also
underscored the need for sustained
environmental stewardship, highlighting
the significance of “Cleaning Engineers”
in safeqguarding coastal areas.

DNI launched a beach clean-up initiative to reduce
pollution, protect marine life, and promote
sustainability in coastal areas. By inviting
employees and volunteers to participate, the
event highlighted the importance of responsible
waste disposal and showcased the vital role of our
“Cleaning Engineers.”

Objectives

- Remove litter and pollutants from the shoreline.

- Encourage community engagement and Looking Ahead

responsible behaviour. . .
DNI plans to build on this success by:

L Ay i B i, o - Safeguard marine ecosystems by raising
BEACH CLEAN UP e B _' awareness of pollution’s impact. Expanding Partnerships
e : o | R B Collaborate with local & government
organizations and businesses for
greater reach.

- Strengthen DNI's commitment to corporate
social responsibility.

Key Activities Enhancing Logistics

- Volunteers received instructions on safety Improve resource planning and procure
measures, resource allocation, and the more supplies to boost efficiency in
environmental threats posed by coastal future clean-ups.
pollution.

Promoting Sustainability
Advance initiatives such as recycling
and responsible waste management.

- Participants worked in teams to collect trash,
sort recyclables, and properly dispose of

- waste. This year, special recognition was given
- to Clegmng Engmgers, emphasizing their Regular Events
essential contribution. Host recurring beach clean-ups
- The initiative concluded with a discussion to reinforce our commitment to a
on future conservation measures, urging healthier environment for all.

volunteers to support long-term environmental
preservation efforts.
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Employment Practices
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Additionally,
employees benefit
from tailored
training programs,
flexible work
arrangements,
and resources that
support physical

and mental health.

DNI approaches employment with a strong
focus on attracting and retaining talent by
emphasizing the well-being of its employees.
A supportive environment fosters higher
productivity and reduces turnover, which is
reflected in DNI's range of financial and non-
financial benefits. Additionally, employees
benefit from tailored training programs, flexible
work arrangements, and resources that support
physical and mental health. This approach
reflects DNI's holistic ethos, highlighting the
connection between employee well-being and
job satisfaction. It creates a workplace that
encourages engagement, supports professional
growth, and strengthens the organization’s
commitment to continued success.

4

DNI's talent pool comprises
employees from

17 nationalities. In 2024,
our total workforce grew by

10.64%.

Year Total Number of Employees
2022 133
2023 141
2024 156

Table 5: Workforce Growth
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Total Employees Age Group Entry Level Middle Level Senior Level
by Age Group

2022 Less than 30 24% 12% 0%
Between 30-50 1% 76% 89%

More than 50 5% 12% 1%

2023 Less than 30 22% 13% 0%
Between 30-50 73% 76% 72%

More than 50 5% 1% 28%

2024 Less than 30 37% 3% 0%
Between 30-50 55% 73% 50%

More than 50 8% 24% 50%

Table 6:Total Employees by Age Group

Commitment to Employee Excellence

Al Kol s

ing what matters

DNI is dedicated to ensuring that every employee

has the opportunity to excel through a well-defined
performance review framework that encourages
continuous development and strategic alignment. This
framework ensures that employees receive regular
feedback, opportunities for skill enhancement, and
alignment with organizational objectives.
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Our performance evaluation process includes probation
review and annual appraisal with systematic goal
setting and KPI alignment and a multilayered feedback
mechanism.

A probation review is conducted after six months to
assess suitability and confirm employment, whereas
annual appraisal is the comprehensive performance
review process for all confirmed employees.

Each evaluation involves multi-layered feedback
from the reporting authority, department head,
and HR, ensuring a holistic assessment of employee
contributions. Goal-setting and KPl Alignment are
conducted through yearly goal-setting exercises to
define Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), linking
individual responsibilities to company-wide objectives
and reinforcing a performance-driven work culture.
(GRI 404-3)

Digital Platform for Employees

To further enhance performance tracking and
workforce management, DNI utilizes the HRMS portal,
which serves as a centralized platform for all HR-related
services.

Key Features of HRMS Portal

Leave Management: It is fully automated and
managed through the Yomly HRMS platform.

ESS: Employee self service requests (employment /
salary certificates, salary advance requests etc.) can
be routed through HRMS

Digitizing Employee
Attendance

DNI is committed to streamlining employee
management through digital innovation. Currently,
attendance data, including punch-in and punch-out
details, is recorded in raw format from Time Tick
and manually processed. To enhance efficiency and
accuracy, plans are in place to consolidate leave and
attendance management into a unified platform
integrated with the payroll system.

By integrating structured employee engagement
and evaluation process with data driven decision
making, DNI ensures that employees remain engaged,
motivated, and aligned with the company's long term
success.

Parental Leave:
Supporting Work-Life
Balance

Recognizing the critical role of parental leave in work-
life balance, we provide comprehensive benefits to
ensure that new parents have the necessary time to
care for their families while staying connected to their
careers.

In 2024, 82 male and 74 female employees were eligible
for parental leave, with 4 male and 1 female employee

utilizing the benefit. Notably, all employees who took
parental leave returned to work and remained with
the organization after 12 months, achieving a 100%
retention rate—a testament to our commitment to a
family-friendly work culture.

DNI's parental leave policy caters to both male and
female employees.

45 days of leave for female employees for postnatal
care and bonding with their newborns.

5 days of leave for male employees for active
participation in early childcare responsibilities.

Through equitable and family-friendly policies, DNI
cultivates a workplace that supports both professional
advancement and personal well-being.

Talent Attraction and
Development

Building a diverse and skilled workforce is critical to
long-term organisational success. We have been making
significant efforts to attract and retain employees.

New Hire Trends

DNI's recruitment efforts continue to reflect a focus
on gender and age diversity. Over the past three years,
hiring patterns indicate an increasing proportion of
female employees, aligning with our broader diversity
and inclusion strategy.

In 2024, we made significant progress in enhancing
gender diversity in recruitment, with female
representation among new hires rising to 59%-a
notable increase from 44% in 2023. This shift reflects
our ongoing commitment to fostering an inclusive and
balanced workforce.

New Hires (by gender) Female Number Percentage Male Number Percentage
2022 6 50% 6 50%
2023 18 44% 23 56%
2024 29 59% 20 A1%

Table 7: New Hires by gender
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Additionally, DNI's hiring distribution across different age groups showcases a balanced approach to workforce planning,
ensuring opportunities for both early-career professionals and experienced talent.

New Hires <30 30-50 >50
(by age group)
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
2022 15 27% 34 62% 6 1%
2023 15 37% 24 59% 2 4%
2024 19 39% 23 47% 7 14%

Table 8: New Hires by Age Group

Employee Retention and
Turnover

While our recruitment efforts focus on diversity and
inclusion, employee retention remains a key priority. In
2024, our employee turnover was 23%. Of the total of
36 resigned employees, 67% were male and 33% female.
(GRI' 401-b, DFM S4)

To reduce attrition, DNI continues to invest in talent
development, employee engagement, and career
growth initiatives that support a thriving and resilient
workforce. Our strategic focus on workplace culture,
leadership opportunities,and professional development
programs ensures that employees remain engaged and
committed to the company’s vision.

Talent Development

At DNI, we regard our employees as the bedrock of our
success and actively foster a culture that promotes
continuous learning. By supporting employees in
staying ahead of industry trends and enhancing their
professional skills, we simultaneously nurture their job
satisfaction and career growth.

Awide range of professional development opportunities
keeps employees up to date with industry standards
and practices. These include in-house sessions on
procurement policies and procedures, HRMS and YOMLY
training, AML and CFT training, department-specific
skill-building programs, business orientation, Avaya

134 |

training, customer service training, and workshops on
goal setting and OKRs

DNI also has a strategic relationship with the Emirates
Institute of Finance (EIF), through which our teams
have the flexibility to choose between online or in-
person course delivery, ensuring training programs
are accessible and tailored to individual learning
preferences.

— r— r—

Total Training Hours:

1,531 hours

in the reporting year

Average Training Hours per
Employee:

9.81 hours

Underwriting &
Pricing

/A\

Leadership
Communications

\4

Social Well-being: Fostering a
Culture of Belonging

DNI places a strong emphasis on creating an inclusive
and supportive community, where employees feel
valued and connected. Through the Happiness
Committee, we organize a variety of engaging
activities that celebrate cultural diversity, encourage
collaboration, and strengthen team spirit.

Inclusive Team-Building Activities: Informal
tournaments, themed events, and national and cultural
celebrations bring employees together, fostering

mutual respect and camaraderie.

Employee Engagement Initiatives: Events such as
carrom tournaments and themed gatherings create
opportunities for interaction beyond work, enhancing

workplace relationships and boosting morale.

Physical Well-being:
Promoting a Healthier
Workforce

DNI recognizes physical health as a key driver of
employee productivity and engagement. To encourage
an active lifestyle, we host a range of sports and
wellness initiatives that contribute to a healthier work
environment:

HRMS

Training

Areas of
Learning

Reinsurance

AML
Training

4

Product
Training

Corporate Sports Events: Participation in activities
like cricket matches, bowling tournaments, and the Al
Habtoor Group Sports Festival promotes teamwork
and fitness.

Workplace Health Programs: Employees benefit from
ergonomic workshops, flu vaccinations, eye check-ups,
and health talks on posture and back pain, helping to
prevent common workplace health concerns.

Emotional and Mental Well-
being: Creating a Positive
Work Environment

DNIis committed to supporting employees’ mental and
emotional well-being, ensuring they have the resources
and support needed to thrive.

Wellness and Awareness Sessions: Regular health
checkups and expert-led discussions on topics such
as stress management and work-life balance provide
employees with the tools to maintain mental well-
being.

Recognising Key Moments: Events like International
Women'’s Day serve as platforms to address mental
health, encourage open dialogue, and reinforce the
company’s commitment to employee well-being.
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DNI Happiness Committee

At DNI, we are dedicated to cultivating a supportive
and thriving workplace where every employee feels
valued and empowered. We believe that a positive
work environment is the foundation of success.
By encouraging open communication, providing
opportunities for professional growth, and organizing
engaging social and recreational activities, we aim
to foster a sense of community and well-being. Our
commitment to work-life balance ensures that our
employees can excel both professionally and personally,
contributing to a vibrant and dynamic workplace
culture.

Our selected happiness committee members meet
regularly to plan initiatives aimed at enhancing
employee happiness and fostering community
engagement.

Our celebrations encompass all UAE national events,
such as National Day and Flag Day, along with diverse
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cultural events that honor the various cultures,
traditions, and backgrounds our employees represent.
Additionally, we hold an annual staff gathering to
strengthen employee bonds and celebrate our
achievements.

At DNI, we take pride in actively participating in various
authority initiatives such as the Dubai Run. By engaging

in the AHG Sports Fest in collaboration with the Dubai
Fitness Challenge, we join thousands of residents
and visitors in celebrating fitness and unity. Our
commitment to promoting a healthy lifestyle extends
beyond this event, as we also organize a variety of
outdoor sports activities that encourage teamwork,
physical fitness, and fun. These activities include fo
otball, Kahoot quiz play, bowling, chess competitions,
and foosball, among others.

In addition to our own initiatives, we participated in the
Al Habtoor Sports Fest 2024, held in partnership with
the Dubai Fitness Challenge, celebrating unity, wellness,
and the spirit of sportsmanship. Our employees,
families, and children enjoyed the fun games and

entertainment, creating impactful and cherished
memories among our team.

In addition, our Happiness Committee organized
various CSR activities in 2024 which are elaborated in
the community engagement section of the report.
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Empowering National Talent
DNI’s Emiratization Commitment

Dubai
National
Insurance
geolildsibgll 1

DIN

h_

DNI is committed to creating meaningful and lasting
social impact, with Emiratization serving as a key
strategic initiative in this endeavor. This commitment
aligns with the UAE Vision 2030, which prioritizes
increasing the participation of Emirati professionals
across various industrial sectors.

At DNI, we recognize that investing in local talent is
not merely a regulatory obligation but a strategic
priority that strengthens our workforce, enriches our
corporate culture, and amplifies our contribution to
national development.

Emiratization has been integrated as a core pillar of our
Human Capital Strategy. We actively collaborate with
national talent agencies and the Ministry of Human
Resources to attract, develop, and retain Emirati talent.

As part of this commitment, DNI aims to achieve
an Emiratization rate of at least 30% by 2026, in
alignment with the Central Bank of the UAE's (CBUAE)
Emiratization Plan for the insurance sector.
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As part of this
commitment, DNI
aims to achieve an
Emiratization rate of
at least 30% by 2026,
in alignment with

the Central Bank of
the UAE’s (CBUAE)
Emiratization Plan for
the insurance sector.

Protecting what matters

Through these efforts, DNI reaffirms its dedication
to supporting the UAE's vision for a diversified and
sustainable economy while fostering a workforce that
reflects the nation’s rich talent pool.

DNI's Emiratization journey is built on three
fundamental pillars:

Talent Attraction & Recruitment: Strengthening
entry-level hiring to provide new career pathways for
Emiratis.

Workforce Development: Investing in career growth
opportunities, professional training, and leadership
programs. Eg: Participation in Ethraa Training
Programme conducted by Emirates Institute of
Finance.

Leadership Integration: Ensuring Emirati professionals
can access senior management roles, contributing to
strategic decision-making.

Emiratization Progress

The Emiratization workforce has shown a positive trend, growing from 10 employees in 2022 to 18 in 2023, and further

reaching 29 in 2024 across various job levels. This consistent growth reinforces DNI's commitment to supporting the local

population and underscores a notable enhancement in the Emiratization strategy.

Year Entry Level Mid-Level Senior-Executive Level
Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
2024 26 90% 2 7% 1 3%

Table 9: Emirati Nationals in the Workforce

DNI has made significant
progress, increasing its
Emiratization rate from
12% in 2023 to 19% in 2024.

DNI's targeted recruitment efforts have resulted in a sharp
increase in entry-level Emirati hires. Women's representation
in the overall DNI workforce increased by 4% during the
year, with women making up 86% of DNI's Emirati workforce
in 2024. As we focus on nationalization, we continue to
integrate it with our commitment to gender diversity in
national workforce integration.

Building a Pipeline for Leadership

DNI is not only focused on entry-level hiring but also on
ensuring Emirati professionals are equipped for future
leadership. UAE nationals held 5% of senior management
positions in 2024. To strengthen Emirati participation in
executive roles, DNI continues to:

Offer structured leadership development programs to
accelerate career progression.

Implement mentorship initiatives, pairing emerging
Emirati talent with senior leaders.

Partner with government-led workforce programs to
create executive training pathways.

DNI's Emiratization journey is an ongoing, long-term

commitment to building a sustainable, diverse, and locally
empowered workforce.
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Diversity and Inclusion

As a responsible business, DNI integrates Diversity and
Inclusion (D&l) into its corporate strategy, ensuring
equitable representation, fair treatment, and an
inclusive workplace culture.

DNI fosters a culture of inclusion backed by a zero-
tolerance policy toward discrimination or harassment,
ensuring that no employee is treated differently based
on race, gender, age, disability, nationality, religious

beliefs, or marital status. By embracing 17 nationalities
among its 156 staff members, the company
demonstrates a tangible commitment to diversity and
equal opportunity, recognising that varied perspectives
strengthen problem-solving capabilities and customer
engagement. Through clear policies, structured
awareness sessions, and a focus on fair treatment,
DNI remains dedicated to fostering a workplace where
every employee can thrive.

Women accounted for 47% of our workforce in 2024. (GRI 405-1)

Number of Employees Female Male
(by gender) Number Percentage Number Percentage
2022 52 39% 84 61%
2023 54 39% 87 61%
2024 74 47% 82 53%

Table 10: Gender Balance in the Workforce
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Initiatives to Building a Diverse
and Inclusion Workforce

DNI champions diversity as a cornerstone of innovation
and organizational strength. We believe that diverse
perspectives drive creativity, enhance problem-solving,
and enrich workplace culture. Our approach is built
on a commitment to merit-based hiring, ensuring
candidates are selected based on their qualifications,
experience, and expertise. Simultaneously, we take
proactive steps to foster gender and nationality
diversity across the organization.

Targeted Diversity Programs: We implement
strategic initiatives to attract talent from all groups,
ensuring a level playing field for all candidates. This
is very well reflected in the nationality diversity of
employees.

Women Empowerment Initiatives: DNI is dedicated
to advancing gender balance by empowering women
to step into leadership roles, supported by
mentorship, training, and career development
programs. Leadership in terms of autonomy in job,
handling responsible positions etc. is a result of this
focused initiatives.

Cross-Cultural Integration: With a rich multicultural
workforce, we promote inclusivity through
intercultural employee engagements, celebration
of festivals of employees belonging to various

communities / nationalities, and team-building
activities that strengthen collaboration and mutual
respect.

Fair and Transparent Policies: Our HR framework
is designed to eliminate bias, uphold equity, and
provide all employees with clear, merit-based growth
opportunities.

At DNI, diversity is not just a value—it is a driving force
behind our success.

Promoting Pay Equity

We do not differentiate between genders when
deciding on the applicable remuneration. Employee
remuneration is decided based on merit and expected
duties to be discharged by the employee. The ratio
of median male employee compensation to median
female employee compensation stands at 1:0.94. The
gap continues to decrease, with higher parity as more
women join DNI in various roles.

By integrating D&l into corporate governance and
business operations, DNI strengthens its position as an
employer of choice committed to equity, diversity and
inclusivity.
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DNI recognizes
that environmental
management is
not just about

the resources it
directly uses but
also the potential
to create an impact
on the overall
environment

and the impact
environmental
changes can have
on its business.

As an insurance company, DNI's interface with
environmental challenges is different from other sectors.
Being an office-based organization, its own direct
consumption of resources like energy, water, and other
raw materials is limited. Therefore, its operations create
a lesser impact on the environment.

However,DNIrecognizes thatenvironmentalmanagement
is not just about the resources it directly uses but also the
potential to create an impact on the overall environment
and the impact environmental changes can have on its
business. Therefore, for DNI, the environment is not a
responsibility but an opportunity to mitigate risk, build
resilience, and contribute to a more sustainable future.
Climate change, resource scarcity, and waste generation
pose growing challenges for businesses, communities,and
industries alike. DNI seeks to minimize its environmental
footprint by integrating sustainability into operations
while ensuring long-term business resilience.

Energy Source and
Consumption

DNI primarily relies on electricity from the grid to
power its operations. It also uses petrol for all company-
owned vehicles, which serve both operational needs and
employee transportation. Beyond these sources, the
company does not consume any other forms of energy
in its direct operations. Apart from the office buildings
that DNI operates from, it also owns buildings which
are leased to other offices. The energy used to operate
this building is also presented in this report. All energy
consumed is non-renewable energy.

DNI continues to take measures to reduce its energy
consumption and make office operations as efficient
as possible by including smart lighting, optimized HVAC
systems, and energy-conscious workplace practices. The
result of these measures is evident in the reduced energy
consumption in 2024 over 2023. The overall energy
intensity has as well reduced to 7.14 GJ from 8.25 GJ of
energy consumption per employee.
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Type of Energy
Direct Energy
Fuel Used

Indirect Energy

2022

305.70

2023

361.65

2024

358.5

Dubai National Insurance

Power purchased for HQ 617.4 770.86 715.38
Power purchased for office at Abu Dhabi 17.92 30.73 40.45
Power purchased for operating buildings 15178.91 14802.64 1448995
owned by DNI
Total Energy 16,119.93 15,965.88 15604.28
Table 11: Total Energy Consumption (GJ)
Type of Energy 2022 2023 2024

Direct Energy
Fuel Used

Indirect Energy

2.25

2.56 2.29

Power purchased for HQ 4.68 5.59 4.71
Power purchased for office at Abu Dhabi 4.48 10.24 10.1
Total Energy Intensity 6.92 8.25 7.14

Table 12: Energy Intensity (G)) (Energy Consumption per Employee)

Climate Change

DNI's commitment to climate action is aligned with
global and national climate goals, including the UAE’s
Net Zero by 2050 Strategic Initiative—the first net-zero
commitment in the MENA region. The UAE has also
pledged to reduce its greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
by 31% by 2030 under its updated Nationally Determined
Contributions (NDCs) as part of the Paris Agreement.
These efforts reflect the country's long-term vision
to transition towards a low-carbon economy, invest in
clean energy, and implement climate-resilient policies
across industries.

DNI has initiated the measurement of its carbon
footprint as the first critical step towards identifying the
hotspots of GHG emissions, meanwhile it continues to
take action towards integrating energy efficiency and
responsible resource management into its operational
framework to minimize carbon footprint.

Between scope 1and scope 2, the majority of its emissions
occur under scope 2, due to the purchase of electricity.
We have attempted scope 3 GHG Estimation due to flights
taken for business travel and consumption of paper for
operational purposes. However, a comprehensive scope
3 GHG estimation to determine emissions in the value
chain is still to be conducted.

GHG Emissions 2022 2023 2024

Direct Emissions: Scope 1 2118 25.06 25.74

Indirect Emissions: Scope 2 (at HQ) 69.3 86.53 79.61

Indirect Emissions: Scope 2 (at Abu Dhabi) 2.01 3.45 4.54
Indirect E’ELS;:::; SS;::: dz ;:“;Ntl‘; operating 1703.83 1661.6 1610.002

Indirect Energy - Scope 3 Emissions 15.88 28.65 27.36
Total Emissions 1796.33 1776.64 1747.25

Table 13: Total GHG Emissions (MT CO2e)

GHG Emissions Intensity 2022 2023 2024

Direct Emissions: Scope 1 0.16 0.18 0.16

Indirect Emissions: Scope 2 (at HQ) 0.53 0.63 0.51

Indlrec(ta:ET;sg::;iS;cope 2 05 115 113

Indirect Emissions - Scope 3 0.12 0.18 0.17

Total Emissions Intensity 0.8 1.2 0.9

Table 14: GHG Emission Intensity per Employee (MT CO2e per employee)

Addressing Climate Risk

DNI recognises that climate change is a fundamental
business challenge for the insurance sector. Therefore,
DNl acknowledges its responsibility to integrate climate
risk considerations into its core business strategy
beyond reducing GHG emissions. Through a robust risk
management framework and underwriting policies,
DNI'is committed to aligning with global best practices
to assess, mitigate, and adapt to climate-related risks.
By proactively identifying climate-driven opportunities,
the company aims to enhance business resilience,
strengthen risk models, and contribute to sustainable
insurance solutions that benefit both clients and
communities.

Water Usage

DNI is an office-based company that uses water
primarily for sanitation, maintenance, and drinking
purposes. Therefore, its water is important but not a
critical resource for its operations. DNI sources all its
water from the local municipal supply. The resulting
effluent is disposed of in the municipal sewers. No used
water is left directly on land.

Generally, UAE is a water-stressed country, therefore,
efficient utilisation of water is essential for all types
of organizations, despite desalinated water being
available. DNI remains committed to improving water
efficiency through Smart water monitoring systems,
Employee awareness programs and Integration of
water-efficient fixtures.
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The water consumption increased from 10,686.07 m? in
2023 to 13,293.83 m? in 2024 on account of increase in
employees.

Year Water Consumption (m?3)
2022 10052.37
2023 10686.07
2024 13293.83

Table 15: Water Consumption
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Waste Management

DNI is an office-based organization, therefore the waste
generated generally includes paper, plastic bottles,
and electronic waste. Therefore, most of the waste
generated is municipal waste, except electronic items.
The municipal waste is disposed to the local authority or
appropriate disposer for disposal. 640 cubic metre of
waste was generated in 2024.

A significant step in waste reduction efforts was
replacing 150 individual desk bins with four centralized
bins, fostering a culture of conscious waste generation.

GRI Index

GRI Standard

General Disclosures

Disclosure

Organization and its reporting practices

2-1 Organizational details

Location

About The Report

2-2 Entities included in the organization’s
sustainability reporting

About The Report

2-3 Reporting period, frequency and contact point

About The Report

2-4 Restatements of Information

About The Report

2-5 External Assurance

Activities and workers

2-6 Activities, value chain and other business
relationships

About The Report

About DNI

2-7 Employees

Governance

2-9 Governance structure and composition

Employment Practices

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding and
Governance Structure

2-12 Role of the highest governance body in
overseeing the management of impacts

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding and
Governance Structure

2-13 Delegation of responsibility for managing
impacts

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding and
Governance Structure

2-14 Role of the highest governing body in
sustainability reporting

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding and
Governance Structure

2-16 Communication of critical concerns

Ethical Business Conduct; Whistleblowing Policy

2-19 Remuneration policies

Ethical Business Conduct; Fair and Competitive
Remuneration

2-20 Process to determine remuneration

Strategies and Policies

2-22 Statement on sustainable development strategy

Ethical Business Conduct; Fair and Competitive
Remuneration

Message from CEO

2-23 Policy commitments

2-24 Embedding policy commitments

2-25 Processes to remediate negative impacts

Ethical Business Conduct; Systematic Risk
Management

2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising
concerns

Ethical Business Conduct; Fair and Competitive
Remuneration

2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations
Stakeholder Engagement

2-29 Approach to stakeholder engagement

Approach to ESG; Stakeholder Engagement

Disclosures on
material topics

3-1 Process to determine material topics

Approach to ESG; Materiality Assessment
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GRI Standard

Disclosure

Location

GRI Standard

Disclosure

Location

3-2 List of material topics

Approach to ESG; Materiality Assessment

3-3 Management of material topics

Economic
Performance

201-1 Direct economic value generated and
distributed

Economic Value Creation

201-2 Financial implications and other risks and
opportunities due to climate change

Economic Value Creation

201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other
retirement plans

Economic Value Creation

201-4 Financial assistance received from government

Economic Value Creation

Market Presence

202-2 Proportion of senior management hired from
the local community

Procurement
Practices

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Economic Value Creation; Sustainable Procurement

Anti-corruption

205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to
corruption

Ethical Business Conduct - Anti Corruption

Marg;';en:ent 303-1 Interactions with water as a shared resource Environmental Management; Water Usage
303-2 Management.of water discharge-related Environmental Management; Water Usage
impacts
303-5 Water Consumption Environmental Management; Water Usage
Emissions 305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions Environmental Management; Climate Change
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions Environmental Management; Climate Change
305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions Environmental Management; Climate Change
305-4 GHG emissions intensity Environmental Management; Climate Change
305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions Environmental Management; Climate Change
Energy 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization Environmental Management; Energy Source and

Consumption

205-2 Communication and training about anti-
corruption policies and procedures

Ethical Business Conduct - Anti Corruption

205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions
taken

Ethical Business Conduct - Anti Corruption

302-2 Energy consumption outside of the
organization

Environmental Management; Energy Source and
Consumption

Waste

306-1 Waste generation and significant waste-related
impacts

Environmental Management; Waste Management

302-3 Energy intensity

Environmental Management; Energy Source and
Consumption

302-4 Reduction of energy consumption

Environmental Management; Energy Source and
Consumption

306-2 Management of significant waste related
impacts

Environmental Management; Waste Management

306-3 Waste generated

Environmental Management; Waste Management

Employment

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover

Employment Practices; Talent Attraction and
Development

401-2 Parental Leave

Employment Practices; Parental Leave

401-3 Benefits provided to full-time employees
that are not provided to temporary or part-time
employees

Employment Practices

Training &
Education

404-1 Average hours of training per year per
employee

Employment Practices; Talent Attraction and
Development

404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and
transition assistance programs

Employment Practices; Talent Attraction and
Development

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular
performance and career development reviews

Employment Practices;Commitment to Employee
Excellence

Diversity and
Equal Opportunity

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

Employment Practices; Diversity and Inclusion

Non-
Discrimination

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective
actions taken

Local Communities

413-1 Operations with local community
engagement, impact assessments, and development
programs

Community Engagement

Customer Privacy

418-1 Substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy and losses of
customer data

Customer Privacy and Data Security
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DFM Index

Metric

E1. GHG Emissions

Indicator Unit Location
E1.1) Total Amognt of Scope 1 tonCO2eq Environmental Management; Climate
Emissions Change
E1.2) Total Amount of Scope 2 Environmental Management; Climate
. tonCO2eq
Emissions Change
E1.3) Total Amount of Scope 3 Environmental Management; Climate
. tonCO2eq
Emissions Change
E1.4).P!e.as.e describe |n.vest— Environmental Management; Climate
ments, initiatives and projects to text

reduce CO2 emissions

Change

E2. Emissions
Intensity

E2.1) GHG emissions intensity

tonCO2eq/per output scaling
factor

Environmental Management; Climate
Change

E2.2) Non-GHG emissions

tonCO2eq /per output scaling

Not Applicable

Metric

E7. Waste

Indicator Unit Location
E7.1) Total amount of waste
generated (if possible, broken Environmental Management; Waste
tonnes
down by Hazardous and Non- Management
hazardous)
E7.2) Total amount of waste
diverted from disposal (if tonnes We are unable to quantify the quantum
possible, broken down by diverted from disposal and to disposal
Hazardous and Non-hazardous)
E7.3) Total f .
direc?c)ed?cf)ad?sm(?:a?t(; sz:ittfle DI I Ul DI 10 QIR s
P P ) tonnes quantum diverted from disposal and to

broken down by Hazardous and
Non-hazardous)

disposal

E7.4) Total number and volume
of oil spills (if applicable)

# and tonnes

Not applicable

E7.5) Please describe
investments, initiatives and
projects to reduce waste
generation consumption and to
increase waste recycling

text

Environmental Management; Waste
Management

energy consumed

intensity factor
E3. Energy Usage E3.1) Total amount of direct GJ or MWh Environmental ManagemenF; Energy
energy consumed Source and Consumption
E3.2) Total amount of indirect GJ or MWh Environmental Management; Energy

Source and Consumption

E4. Energy
Intensity

E4.1) Direct energy use intensity

G) or MWh/per output
scaling factor

Environmental Management; Energy
Source and Consumption

E4.2) Total indirect energy usage
per output scaling factor

GJ or MWh/per output
scaling factor

Not Applicable

E4.3) Please describe
investments, initiatives and
projects to reduce energy
consumption and to increase
energy efficiency

text

Environmental Management; Energy
Source and Consumption

E5. Energy Mix

ES5.1) Renewable energy used

GJ, MWh or %

0GJ

E5.2) Non-renewable energy used

GJ, MWh or %

Environmental Management; Energy
Source and Consumption

E6. Water and
Effluents

E6.1) Total amount of water
withdrawn

m3

Environmental Management; Water
Usage

E6.2) Total amount of water
discharged

m3

Not Available

E6.3) Total amount of water
consumed (If possible, a
breakdown by source: surface
water, groundwater, seawater,
etc.)

m3/per output scaling factor

Environmental Management; Water
Usage

E8. Environmental
Management

E8.1) Does your company follow a
formal Environmental Policy?

Yes/No

No

E8.2) Does your company follow
specific waste, water, energy,
and/or recycling policies?

Yes/No

No

E8.3) Does your company adopt
a recognized environment and
energy management systems

such as ISO 14001 and ISO 50001?

Yes/No

No

E8.4) Does you company have
targets in place with regards to
environment, energy, water and

waste?

Yes/No

No

E8.5) Please indicate if any
fines received (> USD 10000)
for non-compliance with laws

and regulations regarding
environmental management

during the last reporting period

usbD

Zero

E6.7) Please describe
investments, initiatives and
projects to reduce water
consumption and to increase
water recycling

text

Environmental Management; Water
Usage

E6.4) Water intensity

m3/per output scaling factor

85.2m3/person

E6.5) Water recycled (If
applicable)

%

No water recycled

E6.7) Please describe
investments, initiatives and
projects to reduce water
consumption and to increase
water recycling

text

Environmental Management; Water
Usage
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E9. Climate Risk
Management and
Oversight

E9.1) Does your board/
Management team oversee
and/or manage climate-related
risks and opportunities? If yes,
describe.

Yes/No

Yes , CEO Message

E9.2) Please describe the climate-
related risks and opportunities
the organization has identified

over the short, medium, and long

term.

text

Environmental Management; Addressing
Climate Risk
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Metric

Indicator

Unit

Location

E9.3) Please describe the
organisation’s processes for
identifying and assessing climate-
related risks

text

Systematic Risk Management

E9.4) Please describe the

impact of climate-related

risks and opportunities on
the organization’s businesses,
strategy, and financial planning

text

Climate change

E9.5) Total amount invested,

periodically, in climate-related

infrastructure, resilience and
product development

Monetary value. Reporting
currency, preferably in USD

Not available

E9.6) Please describe the
greenhouse gas emission targets
(Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope3)
and the related risks

text

Not Available

E9.7) Please share your actions
to align with U6E's Net Zero
Commitment by 2050. Do you
have a net zero emissions target
in place?

text

Yes our actions align to the UAE's
commitment

E10. Biodiversity

E10.1) Please share number
of operational sites owned,
managed and/or leased in or
adjacent to protected areas and
areas of high biodiverstiy value.

Number

Zero

E10.2) Please describe significant
impacts of activities, products
and services on biodiversity

text

Not applicable

S1. CEO Pay Ratio

S1.1) Please share the ratio of
CEO total compensation to
median full-time employee (FTE)
total compensation

Number

The CEO's compensation is driven by the
standard practices and so is employee
compensation.

S1.2) Does your company report
this metric (above) in any
regulatory filings?

Yes/No

No

S3. Breakdown

with Staff

S2.1) Please share the total
enterprise headcount held by
full-time employees (broken
down by: gender, age and
seniority level)

Number and %

Employment Practices

Metric Indicator Unit Location
S4. Employee S4.1) Ygar—over—year change for
full-time employees (broken .
Turnover and New down by gender age. and Number and % Employment Practices
Hires IR S
seniority level)
S4.2) Year—Qver—year change for Number and % Not Applicable
part-time employees
S4.3) Year-over-year change for Number and % ot Ay ieaisle
contractors and/or consultants
S4.4) Year-over-year of new hires . .
(broken down by age, gender and Number and % Employmen;nPdr?)cet\ll(;T;, :Ieenrlt Attraction
seniority level) P
E7.5) Please describe
i t ts, initiati d .
mp:/reosjeTtesntcj rlgél:iel\;i:siz text Environmental Management; Waste
. . M
generation consumption and to anagement
increase waste recycling
S5. Gender
Diversitv and S5.1) Total enterprise headcount Number and % Employment Practices; Diversity &
EquaI)i’ty held by men and women ’ Inclusion

S5.2) Total entry and mid-level
positions held by men and
women

Number and %

Employment Practices; Diversity &
Inclusion

S5.3) Total senior and executive-
level positions held by men and
women

Number and %

Employment Practices; Diversity &
Inclusion

S5.4) The ratio of median
male employee compensation
to median female employee
compensation

Number

Employment Practices; Diversity &
Inclusion

S5.5) Please describe your
company'’s initiatives or
programs to support the

recruitment and retention

of female employees, and to
support female employees
to advance to management
positions.

text

Employment Practices; Diversity &
Inclusion

S3.2) Please share the total
enterprise headcount held by
part-time employees (broken

down by, gender, age and
seniority level)

Number and %

Not Applicable

S3.3) Please share the total
enterprise headcount held by
contractors and/or consultants

Number and %

Not Applicable

S3.4) Please share the total of
national employees (broken
down by, gender, age and
seniority level)

Number and %

Emiratization
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S$6. Human Rights

S6.1) Does your company follow
a harassment and/or non-
discrimination policy?

Yes/No

Yes

$6.2) Does your company have a
formal grievance mechanism in
place?

Yes/No

Yes

S6.3) Does your company follow
a child and/or forced labor
policy?

Yes/No

Yes

S6.4) Does your company follow
a human rights policy?

Yes/No

No

S6.5) Does your company provide
training on human rights and
related internal policies for your
employees?

Yes/No

Not Applicable
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Metric

S7. Health and
Safety

Metric

Indicator

Unit

Location

G4.3) Please share the suppliers
that underwent a supplier’s
environmental audit during the
reporting period

Number or %

Not Applicable

G5.4) Please share the suppliers
that underwent a supplier’s

Indicator Unit Location
S7.1) Does your company follow
an occupational health and Yes/No Not Available
safety policy?
E7.2) Does your company adopt
a recognized health and safety Yes/No No
management systems such as
ISO 45001?
S7.3) Please share the total
employee and total contractors Hours 156 Employees
(if available) manhours
S7.4) Please share t.h.e total Number Zero
employee fatalities
S7.5) PIeasg shqrg the employee Number Zero
lost time injury (LTI)
S7.6) Please share the lost time
. Number 0
injury frequency (LTIF)
S7.7) Please share the total health
and safety training provided to Hours Not Applicable

employees

S8. Community
Engagement

S8.1) Please share the
total amount invested in

Amount invested/ Yearly

the community, including revenue in reporting Not available
philanthropy, donations and currency
sponsorships
S8.2) Please share the total
employee volunteerin .
ploy 9 Hours Not applicable

completed during the reporting
period

G1. Board Diversity

G1.1) Total board seats occupied
by men and women

Number and %

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding
and Governance Structure

G1.2) Total committee chairs
occupied by men and women

Number and %

Not available

G2. Board
Independence

G2.1) Does company prohibit CEO
from serving as board chair?

Yes/No

This is followed as per the law.

G2.2) Please share the total
board seats occupied by
independents

%

Ethical Business Conduct; Shareholding
and Governance Structure

G3. Collective
Bargaining

G3.1) Please share the total
enterprise headcount covered
by collective bargaining
agreement(s)

*Applicable to companies
operating in countries in which
collective bargaining is applicable
by law *

%

This is followed as per law and hence
not applicable

G4. Supply Chain
Management

G4.1) Are your vendors or
suppliers required to follow a
Code of Conduct?

%

No

social audit during the reporting Number Not Applicable
period
G5.5) Please share the new
suppliers receiving warning due .
to the environmental/social text Not Applicable
screening
G5. Ethics and 65.1) Poes your company follgw Ethical Business Conduct; Anti-
. . an Ethics and/or Anti- Corruption Yes/No .
Anti-Corruption . Corruption
policy?
G5.2) Please share the workforce
formally compliant with the Anti- % 156 Employees
Corruption Policy
GSB.) Please share th? conﬁrmed Ethical Business Conduct; Anti
incidents of corruption during Number Corruption
the reporting period Number P
G5.4) Please share the corrective
measures taken corresponding Not Applicable as Zero Incidents
. L text
to the confirmed incidents of Reported
corruption (in case of any)
. G6.1) Does your company follow . .
G6. Data Security ) . Yes/No Customer Privacy and Data Security
a Data Privacy policy?
G6.2) Has your company taken
steps to comply with GDPR rules Yes/No Customer Privacy and Data Security
or similar standards?
G6.3) Data security breaches
during the reporting period (if Number Customer Privacy and Data Security
any)
7 . iti . .
G Sustal.nabl ity | G8.1) Does ypur F(?mpany publish Yes/No About the Report
Practices a sustainability report?
G8.2) Does your company publish
a GRI, WEF SCM, SASB, IIRC, text About the Report
UNGC or CDP based reporting?
G8.3) Does your company
provide training to its employees
regarding topics related to Yes/No No
sustainability (environment,
human rights, ethics etc.)?
G8.4) Please share the total
sustainability related training Hours Not Applicable
provided to employees
G9.1) Are your sustainability
G9. External disclosures assured or validated Yes/No About the Report
Assurance

by a third party?

G4.2) If yes, what percentage
of your suppliers are formally
certified and compliant with the
Code?

Number or %

Not Applicable

154 |

Integrated Report 2024 | 155



Dubai
National
Insurance
Lol duibgll (1o

Protecting What Matters




